

# Equity and Justice should underpin the discourse on Tipping Points

5 Laura Pereira <sup>1,2</sup>, Ignacio Gianelli <sup>3,4,5</sup>, Therezah Achieng <sup>6</sup>, Diva Amon <sup>7,8</sup>, Sally Archibald <sup>9</sup>, Suchinta Arif <sup>10</sup>, Azucena Castro <sup>2,11</sup>, Tapiwa Prosper Chimbadzwa <sup>12</sup>, Kaera Coetzer <sup>1,13</sup>, Tracy-Lynn Field <sup>14</sup>, Odirilwe Selomane <sup>15</sup>, Nadia Sitas <sup>16,17</sup>, Nicola Stevens <sup>9,18</sup>, Sebastian Villasante <sup>3,4</sup>, Mohammed Armani <sup>19</sup>, Duncan M. Kimuyu <sup>20</sup>, Ibukun J. Adewumi <sup>21,22</sup>, [David M Lapola](#)<sup>23</sup>, David Obura <sup>24</sup>, Patricia Pinho <sup>25</sup>, Felipe Roa-Clavijo <sup>26</sup>, Juan Rocha <sup>2</sup>, U. Rashid Sumaila <sup>27</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Global Change Institute, University of the Witwatersrand, Private Bag X3, WITS, 2050, Johannesburg, South Africa
- <sup>2</sup> Stockholm Resilience Centre, Stockholm University, Stockholm, Sweden
- <sup>3</sup> EqualSea Lab-CRETUS. Department of Applied Economics, Universidade de Santiago de Compostela, Spain;
- <sup>4</sup> [Oportunious Research Professor](#), Universidade de Santiago de Compostela, Spain;
- <sup>5</sup> South American Institute for Resilience and Sustainability Studies (SARAS), Uruguay
- <sup>6</sup> Global Systems Institute, University of Exeter, UK
- <sup>7</sup> SpeSeas, Trinidad and Tobago
- <sup>8</sup> University of California Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara, USA
- <sup>9</sup> School of Animal, Plant and Environmental Sciences, University of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa
- <sup>10</sup> Dalhousie University, Canada
- <sup>11</sup> Department of Iberian and Latin American Cultures, Stanford University, Stanford, USA
- <sup>12</sup> Wildlife Conservation Action, Zimbabwe
- <sup>13</sup> Geography, Geoinformatics and Meteorology, University of Pretoria, South Africa
- <sup>14</sup> School of Law, University of the Witwatersrand, South Africa
- <sup>15</sup> Department of Agricultural Economics, Extension and Rural Development, University of Pretoria, South Africa
- <sup>16</sup> Climate and Development Knowledge Network, SouthSouth North, South Africa
- <sup>17</sup> Centre for Sustainability Transitions, Stellenbosch University, South Africa
- <sup>18</sup> Environmental Change Institute, University of Oxford, UK;
- <sup>19</sup> College of Agriculture and Natural Resources, KNUST, Kumasi, Ghana
- <sup>20</sup> Department of Natural Resources, Karatina University, Kenya
- <sup>21</sup> Australia National Center for Ocean Resources and Security, University of Wollongong, Australia
- <sup>22</sup> Sustainable Development Reform Hub, University of New South Wales, Australia
- <sup>23</sup> [Center for Meteorological and Climatic Research Applied to Agriculture \(CEPAGRI\), University of Campinas, Campinas, Brazil](#)
- <sup>24</sup> CORDIO East Africa, Mombasa, Kenya
- <sup>25</sup> Amazon Environmental Research Institute (IPAM), São Paulo, Brazil
- <sup>26</sup> Escuela de Gobierno, Universidad de los Andes, Colombia
- <sup>27</sup> Institute for the Oceans and Fisheries and the School of Public Policy and Global Affairs, Canada

Correspondence to: Laura M Pereira, [laura.pereira@su.se](mailto:laura.pereira@su.se)

Corresponding author: [Laura M Pereira, laura.pereira@wits.ac.za](mailto:laura.pereira@wits.ac.za)

**Style Definition:** Normal: Font: (Default) Cambria, 12 pt, Bold, Left, Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 li

**Style Definition:** Heading 1: Font: (Default) Cambria, 20 pt, Font colour: Auto, Left, Space Before: 20 pt, After: 6 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 li, Keep lines together

**Style Definition:** Heading 2: Font: (Default) Cambria, 16 pt, Not Bold, Left, Space Before: 18 pt, After: 6 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 li, Keep lines together

**Style Definition:** Heading 3: Font: (Default) Cambria, 14 pt, Not Bold, Font colour: Custom Colour (RGB(67,67,67)), Left, Space Before: 16 pt, After: 4 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 li, Keep lines together

**Style Definition** ... [1]

**Style Definition:** MS title

**Style Definition:** Correspondence

**Style Definition:** Authors

**Style Definition:** Betreff

**Style Definition:** Bullets

**Style Definition:** Header

**Style Definition:** Kontakt

**Style Definition:** Name

**Style Definition:** Copernicus\_Word\_template

**Style Definition:** List Paragraph

**Style Definition:** Affiliation

**Style Definition:** Balloon Text

**Style Definition:** Equation

**Style Definition:** Caption

**Formatted** ... [2]

**Deleted:** Ashish Ghadiali <sup>6</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>23</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>24</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>25</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>26</sup>

**Deleted:** Faculty of Business Administration and Management

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** <sup>23</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>24</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>25</sup>

**Deleted:** <sup>26</sup>

**Formatted:** Page Number

**Deleted:** 1

**Formatted:** Page Number

**Deleted:** ¶

**Formatted:** Normal, Right

## Abstract

Radical and quick transformations towards sustainability will be fundamental to achieving a more sustainable future. However, deliberate interventions to reconfigure systems will result in winners and losers, with the potential for greater or lesser equity and justice outcomes. Positive tipping points (PTPs) have been proposed as interventions in complex systems with the aim to a) reduce the likelihood of negative Earth system tipping points, and/or b) increase the likelihood of achieving just social foundations. However, many narratives around PTPs often do not take into account the entire spectrum of impacts the proposed alternatives could have or still rely on narratives that maintain current unsustainable behaviours and marginalise many people (i.e. do not take 'b' into account). One such example is the move from petrol-based to electric vehicles. An energy transition that remains based on natural resource inputs from the Global South must be unpacked with an equity and justice lens to understand the true cost of this transition. There are two arguments why a critical engagement with these and other similar proposals needs to be made. First, the idea of transitioning through a substitution (e.g., of fuel), whilst maintaining the system structure (e.g., of private vehicles) may not necessarily be conceived as the kind of radical transformation being called for by global scientific bodies like the IPCC and IPBES. Secondly, and probably more importantly, the question of positive for whom, positive where and positive how must be considered. In this paper, we unpack these narratives using a critical decolonial view from the South and outline their implications for the concept of tipping points.

### 500 character blurb

Narratives around tipping points, such as the need for 'positive' tipping points in energy transitions to avoid 'negative' Earth system tipping points, do not take into account the entire spectrum of impacts the proposed interventions could have or still rely on narratives that maintain current unsustainable behaviours and marginalise many people. We unpack these ideas in the context of what they mean for the concept of tipping points using a critical decolonial view from the Global South.

## 1. Introduction

Earth system tipping points, as defined in this special issue, may lead to abrupt, irreversible, and dangerous impacts with serious implications for humanity (Armstrong McKay et al., 2022). Avoiding these thresholds, particularly in addressing climate change and species extinction, requires transformative changes (Rockström et al., 2023). A Tipping point, coming from a mathematical theory by Henri Poincaré on bifurcation to understand change in non-linear systems, is a point at which a system changes from one qualitative type of behaviour to another. The role of feedbacks, which is when change in part of a system becomes self-perpetuating beyond some threshold, leading to substantial, widespread, often abrupt and irreversible impacts (Adams et al, this issue) we consider as a sufficient, but not necessary condition for tipping points to exist. We further argue that from the mathematical point of view, it does not matter if the system is ecological, social, political, cellular, etc; the theory is still successful at achieving explanatory power of a wide range of social and natural phenomena.

While tipping points in biophysical systems have been thoroughly investigated because, for example, Earth system tipping points pose serious implications for humanity (Lenton, 2011; Lenton et al., 2008; Armstrong McKay et al., 2022; Banerjee et al., 2022; Brook et al., 2013; Lenton et al., 2019), the concept of social tipping points is gaining traction (Milkoreit et al., 2018; Otto et al., 2020). However, it is important to note that social scientists have used tools from bifurcation theory to understand purely social phenomena such as poverty (in the 1950s), segregation (in the 1970s), emergence of cooperation, or political polarisation to name a few examples. More recently, social tipping points have been discussed in the context of Earth systems dynamics (Bentley et al., 2014), climate adaptation and systemic risks, but also with an acknowledgement that more research is needed (Juhola et al., 2022). References to 'positive' tipping points, or PTPs as critical interventions to avoid the looming threat of biophysical

## 2.

Deleted: .

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt

Deleted: have

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: embedded to a greater or

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: lesser extent. According to research, only the wealthiest 1-4%

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: the global population will radically need to change their consumption, behaviours, societal values

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: beliefs in order to make space for an equal (... [3])

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: many 'positive' tipping points, such as the en (... [4])

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: .

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: "true cost" of this transition. Another is the r (... [5])

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: or governmental

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: where

Deleted: in the context of what they mean for the idea (... [6])

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt

Formatted: (... [7])

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Armstrong McKay et al., 2022).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Rockström et al., 2023). Positive social

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Page Number

Deleted: 2

Formatted: Page Number

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Normal, Right

135 tipping points are also growing (Lenton et al., 2022a; Tàbara et al., 2018; Tàbara, 2023). In this issue, PTPs have  
been defined as interventions in complex systems with the aim to a) reduce the likelihood of negative Earth system  
140 tipping points, and/or b) increase the likelihood of achieving just social foundations. But they are also defined as  
'emergent properties of systems that would allow the reaching of evolutionary-like transformative solutions to  
successfully tackle the present socio-climate quandary' (Tàbara et al., 2018: 121). Here, we argue that whether a  
tipping point is 'positive' or 'negative' depends on the perspective of the observer, and conflicts or disagreements  
are expected to emerge when multiple observers exist and lack consensus. As such, there can and should be a more  
145 rigorous discussion of these normative dynamics, which we aim to start to unpack from an equity and justice  
perspective.

PTPs can be seen as one type of transformative change, where non-linear social responses to the existential threats  
145 triggered by Earth system tipping points alter either system structure, components or feedbacks into more 'desirable'  
states (Scheffer, 2009). The adoption of norms against indoor smoking or shifting value systems that allowed for the  
abolition of slavery are historical examples of positive tipping points in society (Nyborg et al., 2016). Shifts in  
behaviours needed to move away from current unsustainable practices or overconsumption, towards behaviours that  
will keep global society within a safe operating space are often framed as positive tipping (Adams et al., this issue).  
150 PTPs can be imagined as an interplay of actors exercising their agency towards desired transformations. Leveraging  
the multiple feedback processes necessary to propel and secure changes (Lenton et al., 2022b). These  
conceptualizations however often ignore the issue of desired by who? Or who can be negatively affected by PTPs.

## 2. Tipping Points and Just Transformations

155 Radical and quick transformations towards sustainability will have winners and losers (Blythe et al., 2018), with  
implications for equity and justice depending on who is affected, when, how, and where. For example, the wealthiest  
1-4% will radically need to change their consumption, behaviours, societal values and beliefs to enable an equitable  
and sustainable future for nature and people (Hickel et al., 2022; Rammelt et al., 2023). This societal shift could  
be defined as a PTP, but may not be seen as desirable for those whose consumption and production patterns have to  
160 change. Many 'positive' tipping points still rely on narratives that maintain current unsustainable and unjust  
behaviours, as well as power structures. These narratives often marginalise many people, exploit places as mere  
commodities or stocks, and downplay the need for people in consuming regions to alter system structure,  
components or feedbacks. While the concept of PTPs has been useful in outlining what can be done in the global  
discourse of change, it has not engaged with nor confronted existing imbalances in how the current global system is  
165 configured in terms of power and inequality (Leach et al., 2018; Hamann et al., 2018). For instance, the question of  
positive for whom, where, and at what cost, has not been adequately considered when referring to "positive" tipping  
points. This is specifically relevant within the climate community where sometimes all interventions that avoid a  
climate catastrophe are often framed as positive irrespective of potential consequences, feasibility, or trade-offs. It  
is within this framing that we offer this contribution, drawing on critiques from the regime shifts and  
170 transformations communities that also grapple with the ethics of intervening in complex systems with non-linear  
dynamics.

Although some work has been done in identifying winners and losers of ecological regime shifts, it remains a critical  
gap (Biggs et al., 2018). A tipping point towards an energy, food or other systemic transition in the Global North or  
175 amongst big consumers that remains based on natural resources exploitation in the Global South must be critiqued,  
not least because these systems are so fundamentally interconnected and interdependent across scales, but also  
because by reinforcing the status quo they are unlikely to achieve the sustainability ambitions that are needed  
(Downing et al., 2021; Pereira et al., 2021). To research such telecouplings holistically, an environmental justice  
180 lens is needed (Boillat et al., 2020; Carmenta et al., 2023).

## 3.

- Deleted: these
- Formatted ... [11]
- Formatted ... [12]
- Deleted: (Adams et al, this issue; Scheffer, 2009). For ... [13]
- Formatted ... [14]
- Deleted: that are
- Formatted ... [15]
- Deleted: ,
- Formatted ... [16]
- Deleted: Positive tipping points
- Deleted: ideal
- Deleted: for positive
- Deleted: including the multiple types of actions needed, and
- Formatted ... [17]
- Formatted ... [18]
- Formatted ... [19]
- Formatted ... [20]
- Deleted: (Lenton et al., 2022).
- Formatted ... [21]
- Deleted: However, radical
- Formatted ... [22]
- Deleted: (Blythe et al., 2018),
- Formatted ... [23]
- Deleted: recent literature has shown that
- Formatted ... [24]
- Deleted: (Hickel et al., 2022; Rammelt et al., 2023).
- Formatted ... [25]
- Deleted: positive tipping point
- Formatted ... [26]
- Deleted: .
- Deleted: and
- Deleted: many
- Formatted ... [27]
- Formatted ... [28]
- Formatted ... [29]
- Deleted: positive tipping points
- Formatted ... [30]
- Deleted: critically
- Deleted: and
- Deleted: and associated messiness and
- Formatted ... [31]
- Formatted ... [32]
- Formatted ... [33]
- Deleted: (Leach et al., 2018).
- Formatted ... [34]
- Deleted: and positive
- Formatted ... [35]
- Formatted ... [36]
- Deleted: that must be addressed.
- Deleted: system
- Formatted ... [37]
- Formatted ... [38]
- Deleted: resource inputs from
- Formatted ... [39]
- Deleted: critically unpacked
- Formatted ... [40]
- Deleted: (Downing et al., 2021; Pereira et al., 2021). ... [41]
- Formatted ... [42]
- Formatted ... [8]
- Deleted: 3
- Formatted ... [9]

250

Many injustices are founded in historical legacies of marginalisation reinforced in current geopolitical agendas and environmental policies. Ghosh (2022) traces the current planetary crisis showing that the irreversible negative tipping points that we know we need to avoid are rooted in Western colonialism's violent exploitation of human life and the natural environment. He argues that the dynamics of climate change arise from the geopolitical order that was established by colonialism centuries ago and continues to play out and reinforce present-day inequities. This argument is supported by Hickel et al. (2021) who also extends the driver of our contemporary crises to colonialism, but centres capitalism as the main perpetrator of the exploitation suffered by many people in places over the past five or so centuries. The available data on historical emissions are helpful in this regard (Jones et al., 2023). The colonial legacy not only impacts the climate crisis, but is also intimately linked to the biodiversity crisis (Pörtner, Hans-Otto et al., 2021; Adam, 2014).

255

All life on Earth, not just people, are affected by this colonial discourse, which impacts across regions unevenly. Environmental justice as elaborated from Afro-Indigenous worldviews in environmental humanities, involves the rights of all human and nonhuman communities to a healthy environment (Adamson et al., 2002) and the idea of "multispecies justice" refers to forms of justice that consider entanglements with the nonhuman worlds (Chao et al., 2022). Gupta et al. (2023) propose an integrated "Earth system justice framework" to understand how to reduce risks from crossing tipping points, which includes multiple dimensions of justice including procedural, recognitional and distributive dimensions linked to intragenerational justice (the relationships between humans right now), intergenerational justice (relationships with people across generations), as well as interspecies justice (generally including the rights of nature and other species to co-existence on Earth). These diverse forms of justice seek to foreground the differential impacts of climate change and the solutions to negative tipping points might have, particularly, in already vulnerable populations.

260

265

270

In this paper, we expand on the argument for including equity and justice in the discussion on tipping points, emphasising the need for acknowledging tensions and trade-offs and considering a Global South lens. In this, we go beyond addressing the discussion based on regions or nations, but rather imply a deterritorialized approach that challenges the structures and processes that generate global inequalities (Mahler 2017). This requires switching the narrative away from 'silver bullet solutions' and identifying what biophysical and social-ecological trade-offs we are willing to accept in order to prevent negative tipping points. Although win-win social tipping points may exist, everything comes down to asking why a tipping point is positive, for whom it is claimed to be positive, and whether it can really be positive if it maintains the current inequitable status quo or repeats passing the burden of losses to disadvantaged groups or future generations, but in different ways to the status quo. When the trade-offs occur between two or more social groups, some of whom are already vulnerable or marginalised, this discussion becomes even more pertinent, as it means we have the potential to either reduce, or increase, inequality. Taking justice considerations seriously also means that if a tipping point affects the wellbeing of future generations or other species, it may also not be ethical to call it 'positive'. As such, in the same way that transformations literature has started to refer to 'just transformations' (Bennett et al., 2019), the tipping points community needs to centre equity and justice in their discussions too.

275

280

285

Below we explore examples and cases where delineating the 'positivity' or 'negativity' of tipping points becomes a political and ethical issue. In particular, we hope to contribute to a critical engagement with the concept of PTPs from a Southern and BIPOC perspective in order to see where and how the concept of PTPs can be useful to further equity and justice and where it can be problematic by reinforcing ongoing structural dynamics of exclusion and marginalisation (and therefore not be framed as 'positive'). Whilst PTPs generally refer to interventions in social systems, we use the term positive tipping point rather than social tipping point so as to be able to engage critically with the normative aspect of this framing.

290

### 3. Conceptual framing: A Global South perspective on tipping points

- Deleted: discursive
- Formatted ... [46]
- Deleted: Ghosh (2022)
- Formatted ... [47]
- Deleted: (
- Deleted: , 2021)
- Formatted ... [48]
- Formatted ... [49]
- Deleted: Data
- Deleted: can be
- Formatted ... [50]
- Formatted ... [51]
- Deleted: and are available (Jones et al., 2023).
- Formatted ... [52]
- Deleted: on
- Formatted ... [53]
- Deleted: (Pörtner, Hans-Otto et al., 2021; Adam, 2014).
- Formatted ... [54]
- Deleted: shapes actions
- Deleted: differently
- Formatted ... [55]
- Formatted ... [56]
- Deleted: (Adamson et al., 2002)
- Formatted ... [57]
- Deleted: (Chao et al., 2022).
- Formatted ... [58]
- Formatted ... [59]
- Formatted ... [60]
- Deleted: )
- Formatted ... [61]
- Formatted ... [62]
- Deleted: It
- Formatted ... [63]
- Formatted ... [64]
- Deleted: as claimed
- Formatted ... [65]
- Formatted ... [66]
- Deleted: inequality
- Formatted ... [67]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted ... [43]
- Deleted: 4
- Formatted ... [44]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted ... [45]

315  
320  
325  
330  
335  
340  
345  
350  
355  
360

To situate these ethical challenges, we use three illustrative case studies: 1) the potential of the 30X30 protected areas targets to a) exacerbate ocean inequality, and b) increase human-wildlife conflict, if not implemented inclusively; 2) the energy transition in developed economies and its implications for exacerbated extractivist behaviour in mineral-rich countries of the South as well as the deep ocean in both national and international waters; and 3) the discourse on carbon sequestration interventions to avoid climate tipping points in a) the Amazon as a global public good and the exclusion of Indigenous peoples and local communities (IPLCs) from governance, and b) Nature based Solution (NbS) in open grassy ecosystems as solutions to the problems created by the rich in distant locations. These are not intended to be universal or systematic examples, but are illustrative of the challenges we as authors from the Global South encounter in our work and in which we have specific expertise.

Each case in this section references an Earth system tipping point related to either the biosphere or the climate, illustrates how predominant narratives are being framed to tackle existential threats and unpacks the equity and equality implications that this intervention could have, with disproportionate negative impacts in the Global South. The implications in all of these cases are that some of the global recommendations for 'staying within planetary boundaries', which involve reconfigurations of how society organises itself (from where it gets energy to how it conserves biodiversity), lead to impacts not only on people, but also on ecosystems in the Global South. Given that the wellbeing of people and places are tightly coupled (Hamann et al., 2018), these cases illustrate how cross-scale interactions between initiatives trying to address sustainability in one part of the world invariably rely on ecosystems in other regions (Downing et al., 2021) leading to potential injustices perpetrated against the people and nature in these 'other' or 'sacrificed' zones (Zografos and Robbins, 2020; Gonzalez, 2021; Scott and Smith, 2017; Saleth and Varov, 2023; Valenzuela-Fuentes et al., 2021). We then apply an equity lens from a Global South perspective to reframe alternative options that could have more equitable and just outcomes.

We acknowledge that the 'positive' impact of such proposed interventions largely rely on how they are implemented without aggravating equity problems both within countries and between the Global South and the Global North. In doing so, we try to shift the narrative away from rehashing 'solutions' to recognising that transformation requires the current system to fade (creating losers) and be replaced (creating winners) (Hebinck et al., 2022). We conclude with a set of recommendations for practising more reflexive and ethical approaches to tipping points and sustainability that takes present and future inequities into account.

#### 4. Case studies

##### 4.1. The solution space of Protected Areas (PAs) and the importance of governance in potential PTPs for halting biodiversity loss

The integrity of the biosphere is in jeopardy as humanity has overshoot a safe and just earth-supporting system (Rockström et al., 2023). The recently agreed Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework (GBF) seeks, in Target 3, to protect 30% of land and ocean by 2030 (30x30) through protected areas (PAs) and other effective area-based conservation measures (OECMs) (CBD, 2022). Whilst appearing to be a positive intervention, the initiative risks perpetuating historical injustices, colonial legacies, and power imbalances by imposing Western conservation models on the Global South (Obura et al., 2021).

The goal of protecting 30% of the Earth is a political ambition claimed to be supported by scientific evidence. However, it is neither an exact threshold nor an intrinsic biophysical property of terrestrial and ocean systems. While a lower boundary of PAs must exist to halt biodiversity loss, where that boundary is and how it should be allocated to maximise biodiversity outcomes varies in the scientific literature (O'Leary et al., 2016; Allan et al., 2022; Woodley et al., 2019; Dinerstein et al., 2020; Wilson, 2016; Rockström et al., 2023). Regardless of the exact figure and the

- Deleted: the following
- Deleted: solution
- Formatted
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: in potentially
- Deleted: exacerbating
- Deleted: increasing
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: and c) excluding indigenous peoples from
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: , and 3) the discourse on nature based solut
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: ¶
- Moved down [1]: Case studies¶
- Formatted
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: die
- Deleted: (Hebinck et al., 2022).
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Moved (insertion) [1]
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt
- Formatted: No bullets or numbering
- Deleted: 2
- Formatted
- Deleted: (Rockström et al., 2023).
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: (CBD, 2022). However
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: in the Global South (Obura et al., 2021). Her
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Justified
- Deleted: 2
- Formatted: Page Number
- Deleted: 5
- Formatted: Page Number
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted: Normal, Right

450 more efficient configuration of PAs, the global concerted effort to protect 30% of the planet could be seen to act as a governance threshold, a potential PTP towards transformative biodiversity governance and conservation (IPBES, 2019; O'Leary et al., 2016; Dinerstein et al., 2019). To address Target 3 from a PTP perspective, which has not yet been done, we argue that the discussion around the "positiveness" should place less emphasis on the percentage that needs to be protected, but on how to implement conservation to reduce biodiversity loss without aggravating inequities between the Global South and North (Sandbrook et al., 2023).

455 Below we unpack two case studies of PAs foregrounding inclusivity and equity as a priority. We argue that the focus on PAs as the only way to safeguard critical life-support systems is often short-sighted as a solution and instead offer alternatives from a Global South perspective.

#### 460 4.1.1. Ocean Equity and the role of Marine Protected Areas (MPAs)

465 The novel GBF seeks to expand MPAs to up to 30% of the ocean, making MPAs the main area-based institutional tool for halting and reversing marine biodiversity loss by 2030. By increasing the resilience of key marine ecosystems and their services (Mellin et al., 2016), MPAs are also part of the solution space to reduce the likelihood of Earth system tipping points occurring in tipping elements such as low-latitude coral reefs (Armstrong McKay et al., 2022). They further aim to contribute to human well-being and health in coastal areas through nature-related livelihoods (e.g. ecotourism) or improved fisheries through spillover effects (Lester et al., 2009; Villasante et al., 2023).

470 However, measuring marine conservation success based solely on a coverage metric is problematic. Countries report that 8.2% (about 30 million square kilometres) of the ocean is under some form of MPAs, but only about 6% has actually been implemented on the ground, of which a smaller amount is managed actively (Grorud-Colvert et al., 2021). For instance, at the time of writing this manuscript only 2.9% of the ocean is fully or highly protected from fishing impacts (<https://mpatlas.org/>). A looming time horizon for urgently expanding MPAs up to 30% of the ocean may discourage participatory and collaborative processes that take longer to achieve but often yield long-standing positive social outcomes (Grorud-Colvert et al., 2021; O'Leary et al., 2018). The race to achieve 30% of ocean protection may incentivize the establishment of large, centrally-governed MPAs at the expense of relatively small but locally managed MPAs or Fisheries Management Areas (De Santo, 2013; Smallhorn-West et al., 2020). Since large MPAs are often placed in former colonies (O'Leary et al., 2018), former colonial powers from the Global North are more likely to meet ocean conservation targets without compromising their own access to coastal areas.

480 While the ecological benefits of well-managed MPAs are relatively well documented (e.g., (Lester et al., 2009; Grorud-Colvert et al., 2021; Sala and Giakoumi, 2018; Edgar et al., 2014), although not without controversy (Hilborn, 2018), the social outcomes resulting from MPA establishment are ambiguous (Ban et al., 2019). MPAs can compromise the social well-being of vulnerable communities and Indigenous peoples via forced removals or displacement from traditional areas, loss or restriction of access rights, or threat to food security, health, and livelihoods (Bennett and Dearden, 2014; Sowman and Sunde, 2018; Oracion et al., 2005). Together with other negative well-being outcomes related to identity and culture (Ban et al., 2019), research shows that a strong global focus on increasing MPAs towards conserving and halting marine biodiversity loss may fail carefully and comprehensively to address historical impacts and ongoing inequity issues experienced by coastal communities in the Global South. For instance, in South Africa, some MPAs led to the weakening of local governance rights and processes, loss of livelihoods, culture and tenure rights, and increasing conflict in already marginalized coastal communities (Sowman and Sunde, 2018). Similarly, Oracion et al (2005) documented that in some MPAs in the Philippines, the tourism sector marginalized small-scale fishers in terms of access and control, jeopardizing fishing-dependent communities' economic and socio-cultural viability. An illustrative example of how MPAs can perpetuate historical inequities via neo-colonialism is the declaration of a large 'no-take' MPA in the Chagos Archipelago by the British government. In doing so, the Indigenous peoples from the Archipelago, who were expatriated by the British colonial power in the

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: A severe regional tipping point includes the die-off of severely threatened marine ecosystems (Armstrong McKay et al., 2022). To halt and reverse marine biodiversity loss, particularly in some Global South biodiversity hotspots such as low-latitude coral reefs, there is a pressing call for transformative governance of ocean biodiversity (IPBES, 2019; O'Leary et al., 2016; Dinerstein et al., 2019). While recent estimates suggest maintaining intact 50-60% of marine ecosystems to avoid further species loss (Rockström et al., 2023), high-level goals like the 30X30 target can have local societal consequences (Sandbrook et al., 2023). We argue that a more nuanced and equitable discourse on positive tipping points in ocean conservation is needed.

As both positive and negative

Deleted: result from MPAs

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: , it is critical to be aware that MPAs may

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Bennett and Dearden, 2014; Sowman and Sunde, 2018; Oracion et al., 2005).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: social

Deleted: (Ban et al., 2019),

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: as a 'tipping point'

Deleted: ,

Deleted: to

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: equity

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

past, were deprived of any eventual resettlement, since fishing is their main livelihood and central to their culture (Dunne et al., 2014). To describe these and other types of injustices experienced by small-scale fishers and perpetuated by external, often powerful, actors on behalf of coastal protection, (Arias Schreiber et al., 2022) coined the term “eco-harassment”.

To foster a more equitable and just discourse around the “positiveness” of MPAs, we argue for, 1) acknowledging customary, traditional, and local practices when protecting coastal areas, which is articulated in Target 22 and the core principles (Section C) of the GBF; 2) involving communities from the very beginning to enhance procedural justice, increasing the likelihood of equitable outcomes; 3) balancing both biodiversity and well-being outcomes of local communities and among stakeholders; 4) implementing a balanced portfolio of government and rightsholder-led protected and conserved areas within the 30x30 target (accommodated by the reference to 'Other Effective Conservation Measures, or OECMs, within the target text), favouring those where small-scale actors and Indigenous peoples are empowered; and 5) not getting carried away by the whirlwind of the looming deadline and quantitative metric whilst neglecting meaningful participatory design, management and governance processes. Overall, MPA expansion must be part of a broader and more diverse governance portfolio to manage our oceans sustainably and equitably both in the present and in the future (O'Leary et al., 2016).

A potentially impactful alternative for promoting ocean conservation without overburdening coastal communities would be closing the high seas to fishing. Fishing on the high seas is mostly possible because of harmful public subsidies, yet only provides jobs and significant incomes to relatively few, mainly in the Global North (McCauley et al., 2018). This intervention could enable a much more equitable share of the ocean's bounty as the majority of those fishing in the high seas are high-income nations (Sumaila et al., 2015). Closing the high seas could benefit biodiversity while being catch and global food-security neutral (Sumaila et al., 2015; Schiller et al., 2018). Further, inequality in the distribution of fisheries benefits among the world's maritime countries could be reduced by 50%, contributing to resource sustainability and well-being in some of the poorest and most fish-dependent countries worldwide (Teh et al., 2017). Yet, as a potential PTP towards a healthier ocean, this intervention faces barriers in gaining traction outside academia and advocacy groups as the current winners or keystone actors (See Österblom et al., 2015) like the fleets of some wealthier nations, would become the losers (White and Costello, 2014).

#### 4.1.2. Human Wildlife Conflict, Militarisation and Conservation in Southern Africa

Africa faces rapid biodiversity loss due to habitat loss, poaching, deforestation, climate change, and human-wildlife conflict (HWC) (Archer et al., 2020). How human wildlife conflict such as crop raiding, livestock predation, and even attacks on humans by wildlife, have been addressed further exacerbate inequality in marginalized communities, with a substantial negative impact on both livelihoods and wildlife conservation (Nyirenda and Tembo, 2016; Gross et al., 2021; Song, 2023). Such efforts have largely been guided by a model of conservation rooted in colonial legacies that prioritizes tourists' privileges and perspectives of external conservation organizations, to the detriment of local communities' needs. This has created a sense of 'us versus them' among the local authorities and the people who coexist with wildlife (Mutanga et al., 2021), aggravating social injustices and violence through forced evictions of marginalized populations (Koot and Büscher, 2019).

Implementing the 30x30 as a “socially desirable” target within current conservation frameworks and mindset may worsen the ongoing exploitations of marginalized groups if socially just conservation practices that account for the needs of the local communities are not considered. For instance, to mitigate future biodiversity loss, conservation activities in Zimbabwe and across southern Africa have become more militarized (Duffy, 2014; Duffy et al., 2019) leading to a ‘green militarisation’ in the name of conservation and anti-poaching efforts (Lunstrum, 2014) within a broader shift towards ‘green violence’ (Mushonga, 2021). The intensity of this militarization is often more pronounced due to factors such as colonial legacies, socio-economic inequality, and political instability in Africa and the Global

- Formatted ... [79]
- Formatted ... [80]
- Deleted: The 30x30 target
- Deleted: revitalization and empowerment
- Deleted: local communities in
- Deleted: may be reconciled by:
- Formatted ... [81]
- Formatted ... [82]
- Formatted ... [83]
- Formatted ... [84]
- Deleted: articulate
- Deleted: target
- Formatted ... [85]
- Formatted ... [86]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted ... [87]
- Deleted: MPAs
- Formatted ... [88]
- Deleted: in a sustainable and equitable manner (O'L... [89]
- Formatted ... [90]
- Deleted: ,
- Formatted ... [91]
- Deleted: , where fishing
- Deleted: governmental
- Formatted ... [92]
- Formatted ... [93]
- Deleted: , but
- Deleted: provide
- Deleted: several
- Deleted: countries.
- Formatted ... [94]
- Formatted ... [95]
- Formatted ... [96]
- Formatted ... [97]
- Deleted: (Sumaila et al., 2015).
- Deleted: be
- Formatted ... [98]
- Formatted ... [99]
- Deleted: (Sumaila et al., 2015; Schiller et al., 2018) while
- Formatted ... [100]
- Deleted: (Teh et al., 2017).
- Deleted: social tipping point
- Formatted ... [101]
- Formatted ... [102]
- Deleted: Österblom et al., 2015)
- Formatted ... [103]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted ... [104]
- Deleted: 2
- Formatted ... [105]
- Deleted: and there are growing threats to wildlife posed by
- Formatted ... [107]
- Formatted ... [106]
- Deleted: Archer et al., 2020). The ways in which
- Deleted: -
- Deleted: (HWC)
- Formatted ... [108]
- Formatted ... [109]
- Formatted ... [110]
- Deleted: (Nyirenda and Tembo, 2016; Gross et al., 2... [111]
- Formatted ... [112]
- Deleted: centres needs

675 South (Duffy et al., 2015; Pennaz et al., 2018; Büscher and Fletcher, 2018). The creation and expansion of PAs often involve the demarcation of borders and the exclusion of local communities, who may have lived and depended on these areas for generations. This can have severe negative impacts on the populations that live alongside wildlife as well as on the wildlife itself, as this exclusion can lead to conflicts between conservationists and local communities, who may feel that they are being deprived of their land and livelihoods (Mushonga and Matose, 2020). The militarization of conservation efforts often relies on reactive responses to HWC, such as killing problematic animals, rather than addressing the root causes of the conflict, which can escalate conflict and lead to a cycle of retaliation (Ramutsindela et al., 2022). However, it has been shown that militarized conservation efforts, such as the use of armed guards, are not effective in reducing poaching or protecting endangered species (Lunstrum, 2015). When conservation is framed as a security issue, it legitimizes violence, overlooking the wider socio-economic and political contexts and therefore undermining efforts to address the root causes of environmental degradation, HWC, and unsustainable resource use (Büscher and Ramutsindela, 2016). While the militarization of conservation efforts may provide short-term benefits, it may not be effective in the long term and may have negative impacts on local communities. Implementing the 30x30 target in this context, without a much wider reconfiguration of governance and power, is likely to have negative impacts on biodiversity conservation and livelihoods in the Global South.

680 To address the equity and justice issues left out of the 30x30 target, a decolonized model of conservation is needed. This model should 1) address the underlying causes of environmental problems, such as unsustainable production and consumption patterns, rather than just protecting ecosystems and species; 2) involve meaningful participation of local communities in decision-making and implementation, fostering accountability, transparency, and empowerment whilst also respecting traditional knowledge; 3) recognize the customary rights and interests of JPLCs over lands and resources and acknowledges that conservation and development are not mutually exclusive; 4) attempt to jointly develop solutions that are advantageous to people and the environment (Büscher and Fletcher, 2019, 2020; Massarella et al., 2022; Mavhura and Mushure, 2019; Obura et al., 2021, 2023). These benefits are captured in the concept of convivial conservation, which aims to achieve a just and equitable conservation system with an equal benefit distribution (Büscher and Fletcher, 2019). However, while the convivial conservation approach may be considered a radical and plausible alternative, its implementation in the Global South will remain challenging in the face of the existing conservation problems without a complementary social-ecological justice approach to incorporate the rights and responsibilities of different conservation stakeholders from the perspective of procedural, recognition, distributive, and environmental justice (Kiwango and Mabele, 2022). Addressing these core challenges should be a key focus before any conservation intervention is initiated.

685 4.2. Not so positive PTPs: The battery industry and extractivism in the South for the benefit of the North

705 Addressing climate change tipping points has become an existential crisis facing the planet that will only be addressed through reconfiguring global energy and transport systems away from fossil fuels (IPCC, 2023). Greater uptake of renewable energy, together with storage improvements, are part of the systemic transition to net zero energy systems that will reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions (IPCC, 2023). Electric vehicles (EV) have a “large potential to reduce land-based transport emissions, on a life-cycle basis”, provided they are charged by a low GHG emissions electricity source (IPCC, 2023: C3.3). This will not be achieved without maximising battery production from cleaner energy and an efficient supply chain of minerals (ECOS et al., 2023).

710 Rapid growth in the EV market has therefore been presented as an imperative to meet global targets for reducing GHG emissions (Harper et al., 2019; Lam and Mercure, 2022). This could arise within the next decade in the leading car markets of the US, EU, China, Japan and South Korea, which could “induce” an EV transition in the rest of the world, bringing self-reinforcing benefits in terms of further cost reduction and product diversity (Lam and Mercure, 2022; Azevedo et al., 2018). This has been proposed as a potential PTP (Systemiq, 2023). The reorganisation and retooling of production lines to manufacture EVs, which signal profit expectations over at least a decade, can be

- Deleted: protected areas
- Formatted ... [135]
- Formatted ... [136]
- Deleted: involves
- Formatted ... [137]
- Deleted: (Mushonga and Matose, 2020).
- Formatted ... [138]
- Deleted: rely
- Deleted: human-wildlife conflict
- Formatted ... [139]
- Formatted ... [140]
- Deleted: problem
- Formatted ... [141]
- Deleted: (Ramutsindela et al., 2022). Militarized
- Formatted ... [142]
- Deleted: have
- Deleted: been shown to be
- Deleted: (Lunstrum, 2015).
- Formatted ... [143]
- Formatted ... [144]
- Formatted ... [145]
- Deleted: human wildlife conflict
- Formatted ... [146]
- Deleted: (Büscher and Ramutsindela, 2016).
- Formatted ... [147]
- Deleted: such as increased protection of wildlife,
- Deleted: -
- Formatted ... [148]
- Formatted ... [149]
- Deleted: a
- Formatted ... [150]
- Deleted: impact
- Deleted: the
- Formatted ... [151]
- Formatted ... [152]
- Deleted: of biodiversity
- Formatted ... [153]
- Deleted: A decolonized model of conservation is ne ... [154]
- Formatted ... [155]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted ... [156]
- Deleted: include conservation that
- Deleted: addresses
- Formatted ... [157]
- Formatted ... [158]
- Deleted: involves
- Formatted ... [159]
- Deleted: recognises
- Deleted: local communities
- Formatted ... [160]
- Formatted ... [161]
- Deleted: attempts
- Formatted ... [162]
- Deleted: (Büscher and Fletcher, 2019, 2020; Massa ... [163]
- Formatted ... [164]
- Deleted: idea
- Formatted ... [165]
- Deleted: (Büscher and Fletcher, 2019).
- Formatted ... [166]
- Deleted: (Kiwango and Mabele, 2022).
- Formatted ... [167]
- Moved down [21]: The destruction of the Amazon rainforest leads

1025

seen as irreversible within the climate policy timescale (Lam and Mercure, 2022). According to the Paris Declaration on Electro-Mobility and Climate Change and Call to Action, the goal is to have more than 100 million Electric Vehicles and 400 million two and three-wheelers by 2030 (PD 2015 in Ajanovic and Haas, 2018).

1030

However, whilst EVs may have the potential to reduce GHG emissions, their batteries currently rely on minerals such as lithium, cobalt and nickel, the extraction of which have considerable and frequently devastating social and environmental impacts in the Global South (Ajanovic and Haas, 2018; Harper et al., 2019). Global demand for Lithium-ion (Li-ion) batteries is expected to soar over the next decade, from a demand of around 700 GWh in 2022, to around 4700 GWh in 2030 (Azevedo et al., 2018) with an estimated 1500% rise in global demand of lithium by 2050 (Canelas and Carvalho, 2023).

1035

The lithium, cobalt and nickel currently required to manufacture Li-ion batteries are mined under highly oligopolistic and even monopolistic conditions: in Australia, China and Chile for lithium (85% of global production) and the Democratic Republic of the Congo (DRC) for cobalt (70% of global production) (Azevedo et al., 2018; Campbell, 2020). Despite being framed under 'green transition' discourses, these corporatised transitions tend to follow a mineral-intensive pathway that increases demand for critical raw materials and expands extractivism to new commodities and marginal territories with the social-ecological impacts of mining largely being overlooked, despite driving significant environmental conflicts (Canelas and Carvalho, 2023).

1040

In recent decades, soaring demand has intensified cobalt mining in the Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC) (Calvão et al., 2021). The pressure to meet increasing demand has reinforced integration of wageless artisanal cobalt miners into the corporate chain, through the so-called formalisation of informal mines where the knowledge and acceptance of consequences becomes hidden within bureaucracy and structures (Calvão et al., 2021). The emergent exploitative regimes are characterised by disregard for the occupational health and labour security of artisanal miners, health risks, and environmental degradation in the new mining communities (Banza Lubaba Nkulu et al., 2018). As demand continues to rise, the formalisation strategies of small-scale miners in the DRC, imposed by large corporations, will deepen insecurities and vulnerabilities of local communities (Calvão et al., 2021), reinforcing and locking artisanal miners in a dependent and complex chain.

1045

1050

In Chile's Salar de Atacama, a major centre of lithium production, 65% of the region's water is consumed by mining activities, affecting farmers who must then import water, or migrate as they have been forced to sell their water rights on the desert rivers to mining industries. The demands on water from the processing of lithium are substantial, with a ton of lithium requiring 1,900 tons of water (Katwala, 2018). In the Andes, local lithium, salt flats and solar exploitation could perpetuate green grabbing practices developed by mining and energy stakeholders that reinforce and even extend pre-existing processes of commodification of nature and accumulation of resources for use outside of local contexts (Forget and Bos, 2022). Even in the Global North, there are cases of marginalisation. In Northern Portugal, local communities are mobilizing against Li mining projects that threaten to turn their regions into "green sacrifice zones," driving significant environmental conflicts and grassroots resistance to what they term infrastructural colonisation (Canelas and Carvalho, 2023). Sacrifice zones are defined as "extractive areas" characterised by the advancement of coordinated forms of capitalism that perceive those territories and the communities inhabiting them as extractable and commodifiable (Gómez-Barris, 2017). "Green sacrifice zones" are spaces or ecologies, places and populations that will be severely affected by the sourcing, transportation, installation, and operation of solutions for powering low-carbon transitions, as well as end-of-life treatment of related material waste (Zografos and Robbins, 2020: 543).

1055

1060

1065

1070

Increasing demand for these rare earth minerals is now expanding extractive focus to the deep sea, both within and beyond national jurisdictions, where minerals such as cobalt and nickel occur. Within national jurisdictions, interest has been largely in the Global South, including the Cook Islands, Namibia, and Papua New Guinea, whereas in areas

Deleted: (Lam and Mercure, 2022).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (PD 2015 in (Ajanovic and Haas, 2018)).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: and act as a positive tipping point

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: global South (Ajanovic and Haas, 2018; Harper et al., 2019)....

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Azevedo et al., 2018).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: Ion

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Azevedo et al., 2018; Campbell, 2020).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Calvão et al., 2021).

Deleted: an

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: , with consequences including emergent exploitative regimes with no regard for securities of artisanal miners, in...

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Calvão et al., 2021),

Formatted: (Banza Lubaba Nkulu et al., 2018). As the

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted:

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Calvão et al., 2021),

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: .

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Katwala, 2018).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Forget and Bos, 2022). The increasing de(... [185]

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Page Number

Deleted: 9

Formatted: Page Number

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Normal, Right

beyond national jurisdictions, thirty exploration contracts have been granted by the International Seabed Authority (ISA) totalling over one million square kilometres<sup>2</sup> (Levin et al., 2020).

1105 Although no deep-sea mining has occurred, there are major sustainability and equity concerns (Jaeckel et al., 2023; Levin et al., 2020; Wilde et al., 2023). These include intense and irreversible damage to some of the planet's most pristine and poorly understood habitats across enormous scales, which could have knock-on effects on ecosystem services such as climate resilience, fisheries production, marine genetic resources, as well as critically important cultural connections between humans and the deep ocean (Amon et al., 2022b; Jaeckel et al., 2023; Le et al., 2017; Tilot et al., 2021). Negative social and economic effects are also possible from this unproven industry, particularly for developing states e.g., Papua New Guinea saw losses of over 100 million USD when a partnership with a Global North deep-sea mining entity collapsed (Jaeckel et al., 2023). These risks are compounded by a lack of science to guide effective decision-making and management (Amon et al., 2022a).

1115 In areas beyond national jurisdictions, equity concerns are exacerbated by the minerals as the "common heritage of [hu]mankind" narrative (United Nations, 1982). According to this narrative, mineral resources are supposed to be "vested in mankind as a whole," and should be managed to ensure that any mining benefits as many people as possible, including future generations. However, there is not yet a financial mechanism to accomplish this and little clarity around who benefits and who carries the burden of environmental, economic and social risk. Diverse mechanisms have been devised to ensure that developing states are able to participate in deep-sea mining and receive an equitable share of the benefits, but most of these measures are yet to be implemented. The recent trend of partnerships between private deep-sea mining companies and developing states might also jeopardise the original objectives (Willaert, 2022). There are no governance frameworks, no robust and inclusive engagement of all those with a stake, nor transparent decision-making processes (Jaeckel et al., 2023; Morgera and Lily, 2022; Wilde et al., 2023). Further and ultimately, the reliance on these minerals maintains relationships whereby the lands and ocean in the South and a Global Commons (international waters) serve only as inputs to maintain lifestyles in the North with potentially profound geopolitical and social implications (e.g. Carrasco and Madariaga, 2022; Kingsbury, 2022).

1130 While there are many sound suggestions for improving the conditions for specific mining sites and industries (Mancini et al., 2021; Deberdt, 2021), these suggestions do not address the elephant in the room: the continued expectation of the convenience of private passenger transport in the developed world. Instead of looking at niche innovations like EVs as transition pathways to alternative mobility structures, without unpacking the equity and justice implications of where these materials come from or who benefits (See Geels, 2018), perhaps a more transformative approach that limits personal vehicles in favour of large-scale public transport might be a more equitable, just, and even profitable solution (Gössling, 2020; Riofrancos et al., 2023). This would require a change in mindset and lifestyle for those responsible for the most consumption, whilst benefiting more people with improved access to transport and less burden on raw materials. Further, that some scientists advance the EV transition as a PTP without consideration of the systemic implications of increased mineral extraction is startling, if not contradictory (e.g. Lam and Mercure, 2022; U.S. Department of Energy, 2020). We assert that this positioning is symptomatic of a continued malaise, an intentional disregard of the material base of existence and well-being by the rich.

### 1140 4.3. Addressing negative Earth system tipping points

1145 Climate change due to rising greenhouse gas emissions has generated the push for a global commitment to achieve net zero emissions by the middle of this century (IPCC, 2023). Achieving this requires a balance between reducing

<sup>2</sup> <https://www.isa.org/jm/exploration-contracts/exploration-areas/>

- Deleted: (Jaeckel et al., 2023; Levin et al., 2020; Wil... [190]
- Formatted [189]
- Formatted [191]
- Deleted: (Amon et al., 2022b; Jaeckel et al., 2023; L... [192]
- Formatted [193]
- Deleted: (Jaeckel et al., 2023).
- Formatted [194]
- Deleted: (Amon et al., 2022a).
- Formatted [195]
- Deleted: "
- Formatted [196]
- Deleted: humanity
- Deleted: (United Nations, 1982).
- Formatted [197]
- Formatted [198]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted [199]
- Deleted: Specifically, diverse
- Formatted [200]
- Deleted: were
- Deleted: make sure
- Formatted [201]
- Formatted [202]
- Deleted: and the
- Formatted [203]
- Deleted: jeopardize
- Formatted [204]
- Deleted: (Willaert, 2022).
- Deleted: also
- Formatted [205]
- Formatted [206]
- Deleted: (Jaeckel et al., 2023; Morgera and Lily, 202... [207]
- Formatted [208]
- Deleted: severe
- Deleted: (e.g. Carrasco and Madariaga, 2022; Kings... [210]
- Formatted [209]
- Formatted [211]
- Deleted: (Mancini et al., 2021; Deberdt, 2021),
- Formatted [212]
- Deleted: (See Geels, 2018),
- Formatted [213]
- Deleted: just solution (Gössling, 2020; Rionfrancos... [214]
- Formatted [215]
- Deleted: positive tipping point
- Deleted: (e.g. Lam and Mercure, 2022; U.S. Depart... [217]
- Formatted [216]
- Formatted [218]
- Deleted: a blindness to
- Deleted: in
- Formatted [219]
- Formatted [220]
- Deleted: developed world and evidence of a contin... [221]
- Formatted [222]
- Deleted: 2.3. Nature Based Solutions in African eco... [223]
- Formatted [224]
- Deleted: have
- Formatted [225]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted [226]
- Formatted [186]
- Deleted: 10

1230 emission sources and enhancing greenhouse gas sinks. However, the role of the sinks and in particular critical ecosystems that are approaching biophysical tipping points, cannot be understood only as global public goods of carbon sequestration.

#### 4.3.1. Equitable solutions in the Amazon basin

1235 The Amazon rainforest is approaching a biophysical tipping point, which, if crossed, would trigger irreversible phenomena with planetary consequences (Boulton et al., 2022; Lapola et al., 2023). The destruction of the Amazon rainforest leads to biodiversity and cultural loss as well as reduced carbon storage affecting the global climate. Furthermore, self-reinforcing interactions between deforestation, climate change and fire are pushing the Amazon biome towards a tipping point with large quantifiable economic losses (US\$256.6 billion in cumulative gross domestic product by 2050) and environmental costs (Banerjee et al., 2022; Lapola et al., 2018). In a similar mode to the 30x30 target, a dominant proposal to avoid the Amazon rainforest reaching a tipping point is to classify it as a PA (Walker et al., 2009). A strong narrative underpinning such solutions is that, similar to the global commons argument about the deep seas made in 4.2, tropical forest basins like the Amazon and the Congo are considered global public goods and need to be protected for the good of the planet with little consideration or reparations for the people who have lived within these regions for generations, maintaining these ecosystems, and what their aspirations might be and how their autonomy might be affected (Navrud and Strand, 2013; Neves et al., 2021; Nobre et al., 2016). Whilst avoiding a biophysical tipping point in the Amazon is imperative, we argue that there is a need to address the drivers of deforestation and degradation at the global level rather than simply putting the burden of protection on national and local actors.

1250 As such we offer three alternative mechanisms to reframe how to avoid a tipping point in the Amazon. The first emphasises the need for self-determination and agency for local communities to protect their own territories, disbanding this 'Global Public Good' narrative by recognizing the rights of nature in connection to stewardship forms and ancestral cosmologies of the Afro-Indigenous inhabitants of the Amazon. Using an equity and justice lens entails accepting the forms of forest stewardship that the Indigenous peoples inhabiting the Amazon have been practising ancestrally, such as recognising that the Amazonian Floresta is a vibrant animated being in ancestral cosmology, a living forest, with its own rights, as a subject of law (Biemann and Tavares, 2014). A legal mechanism to enshrine this is the Rights of Nature approach, whereby nature has a legal standing in a court of law, with its own rights to be protected. This is institutionalised in the Ecuadorian Constitution, although not without challenges (Tanasescu, 2013; Akchurin, 2015; Kotzé and Calzadilla, 2017; Berros, 2021). The potential of a rights to nature approach, rather than just setting aside a PA that may not in any case work, is becoming an increasingly recognised option that should be taken into consideration (Cano Pecharroman, 2018; Harden-Davies et al., 2020; Putzer et al., 2022). In particular, it offers an interesting option that transcends European modernity and allows for indigenous worldviews to take precedent (Knauf, 2018).

1265 The second mechanism looks to address the global drivers that are moving the Amazon towards a tipping point, by asking whose interests and what actors are actually driving the degradation of the Amazon. By analysing the wave of forest fires that has been affecting the Amazon in 2019, Raftopoulos & Morley reflect on the claims of "ecocide" made by large sectors of civil society in the human rights areas as a legal term that could have a positive impact in stopping the destruction of the Amazon:

1270 In recognition of the limitations of current international law to protect the environment, an increasing number of academics, activists and legal scholars have campaigned for the criminalisation of ecocide and the need to 'recognise human-caused environmental damage and degradation (whether committed during or outside of war-time), as a crime of strict liability. (Raftopoulos and Morley, 2020: 10).

Moved (insertion) [2]

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: 11

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

1275 Including ecocide as a crime could constitute an effective solution that directly addresses the ecological crimes driving the Amazon tipping point: Mega-corporations, governments and powerful groups like cattle raisers in Brazil (Piotrowski, 2019) that should be held accountable if they destroy, damage or contaminate the entangled ecologies of the Amazon rainforest. In fact, for the first time lawsuits have been applied to illegal deforestation by land grabbers that increased carbon emissions (Bragança et al., 2021).

1280 Finally, the third mechanism lies in the potential for leveraging a PTP in the global financial system that moves money away from nature eroding behaviour towards nature supporting investments. Reconfiguring financial flows to the Amazon basin could have transformative and equitable impact in addressing the threats driving Amazon degradation. For example, targeting tax havens could go a long way towards holding companies to account, or ensuring their financial liabilities are transparent. Galaz et al (2018) showed that between October 2000 and August 2011, 68% of all investigated foreign capital to nine focal companies in the soy and beef sectors in the Brazilian Amazon was transferred through one, or several, known tax havens, which represents as much as 90–100% of foreign capital for some companies investigated. As a key source of capital for companies, cutting them off from these sources would make it easier to hold them to account for ecocide crimes in the countries within which they operate.

1290 From a Global South lens, looking at avoiding the Amazon tipping point through an equity and justice lens necessarily implies listening to these claims of civil society and local inhabitants to link ecological destruction with social-ecological injustice (Pinho, 2016). Using the power of the global legal and financial systems to produce a real change in the politics underlying the destruction of the Amazon could be potential PTPs. An ecocide law in the International Court of Justice has the potential to avoid the Amazon reaching a tipping point, not because it will not stop mining or deforestation projects per se, nor because it will reverse the damage to the forest already inflicted, but because it will be a means to enforce responsible practices and hold powerful actors accountable for decisions that cause, or risk causing, mass environmental damage or destruction (Bragança et al., 2021; Roupé and Ragnarsdóttir, 2022). As climate change reveals the profound inequalities between social classes and countries, stopping the Amazon crossing an irreversible threshold necessarily involves centring justice in responding to climate change and biodiversity loss (IPCC, 2019, 2022; Banerjee et al., 2022; Bastos Lima et al., 2021; Lapola et al., 2018). Taking that perspective into action requires attending to the local inhabitants' rights through legislation that recognizes the links between ecocide and ethnocide in the Panamazonian floresta rather than perpetuating a model whereby they remain the losers in the global system.

#### 1305 4.3.2. Nature based Solutions in African grassy ecosystems

1305 Land-based carbon sequestration has become a popular strategy to offset emissions (Allen et al., 2022), particularly through the concept of Nature Based Solutions (NbS), which has become a dominant discourse being incorporated into multiple agreements (European Commission, 2023). NbS is an umbrella term linking approaches that involve enhancing and working with nature to solve societal challenges through protecting and managing natural and semi-natural ecosystems. It is underpinned by the idea that healthy ecosystems provide valuable ecosystem services that support human well-being, including carbon storage, flood control, and clean air and water (Seddon, 2022; Sowińska-Świerkosz and García, 2022). Yet in practice, NbS actions often reflect an expanding interest in carbon offsets which has led to a disproportionate focus on climate change mitigation over adaptation and restoration (Seddon et al., 2020). Certainly, NbS can provide immediate opportunities to reduce CO<sub>2</sub> emissions and if applied with care can also offer significant co-benefits (Girardin et al., 2021). Yet evidence suggests that: 1) carbon offset potentials of NbS based actions are often overestimated, and 2) the assumed ecological co-benefits of increasing carbon stocks are often incorrect and could result in biodiversity losses and degradation rather than restoration (Bond et al., 2019; Seddon et al., 2020). Whilst best practice for equitable and just NbS have been discussed in the

Formatted: Space Before: 12 pt

Moved (insertion) [3]

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: In this context, land-based carbon sequestration has become a popular strategy to offset emissions (Allen et al., 2022), particularly through Nature Based Solutions (NbS)....

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Seddon, 2022; Sowińska-Świerkosz and García, 2022)....

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Seddon et al., 2020).

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold, Subscript

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Girardin et al., 2021). Yet evidence exists that suggest...

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: (Bond et al., 2019; Seddon et al., 2020).

Deleted: 12

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

1330

context of water (Bremer et al., 2021), the potential for non-linear dynamics of NbS interventions in carbon markets have, to our knowledge, not been unpacked.

1335

The emphasis on carbon offsetting as a key intervention to avoid climate tipping points has led to proposals that aim to enhance aboveground carbon across numerous biomes in the Global South. This comes in many forms from natural forest regeneration, reforestation, tree planting, afforestation, fire abatement and a switch to early burning in tropical grassy ecosystems (Zomer et al., 2008; Russell-Smith et al., 2021; Veldman et al., 2019). However, these options consider only one metric, carbon-as-stored-in-trees, to the detriment of other metrics (biodiversity, livelihoods, health, culture) and biophysical processes like fire regimes. This framing further perpetuates a simple model of allowing people to continue their lifestyles in one place as long as they are rich enough to pay people somewhere else to take the problem away, while not recognising the full costs to the communities of committing extensive land resources to maximising above-ground carbon at the expense of other forms of use that also provide ecological benefits (Dooley et al., 2022). Such NbS risk not only exacerbating current paradigms of where interventions must go, but may not even meet their initial mitigation targets. For instance, Bastin et al (2019) suggested tree planting in non-forested landscapes, including extensive areas of Africa's grassy and open ecosystems, could deliver 205 gigatonnes of carbon sequestration. However, this has been shown to overestimate the sequestration potential by more than a factor of five (Veldman et al., 2019). These proposals fail to account for risks of afforesting seasonal systems that are prone to drought and fire, and where above-ground carbon is therefore not a permanent carbon sink.

1340

1345

Via the Bonn Challenge, through the AFR100 (https://afr100.org/), Africa has been identified for providing major opportunities for planting at least 1 million km2 of trees by 2030 with the aim of restoring ecosystems and sequestering carbon (Bond et al., 2019). Yet many of these regions are ancient grassy ecosystems that have co-evolved with fire and herbivory, and have a long history of human utilisation, resulting in plant and animal assemblages that are functionally distinct from forest species, and are not "degraded forests" (Bastin et al., 2018; Droissart et al., 2018; Torello-Raventos et al., 2013; Veldman et al., 2019). The persistent misclassification of ancient grassy ecosystems can be traced back to the colonial era, when Western exploration shaped the field of ecology as a global discipline. During this time, grassy ecosystems were mistakenly perceived as early successional or deforested landscapes (Fairhead and Leach, 1996) resulting in an extensive and profound misreading of the landscape (Pausas and Bond, 2019). Tree planting in these cases presents multiple social, economic and environmental trade-offs, including historical, traditional and indigenous livelihoods of local people, disruption of ecological systems and the services they provide, especially through the introduction of non-native trees, and destruction of rich biodiversity over much of the targeted area in Africa (Martin et al., 2021).

1350

1355

1360

Rather than avoiding a climate tipping point through NbS, such tree-planting interventions in the name of carbon offsets and mitigation could potentially result in another negative biophysical tipping point- that of ancient grasslands shifting into managed monocultures of forests. The increase in tree cover, above certain thresholds leads to a complete loss of grazing potential (Scholes, 2003; Anadón et al., 2014), and fundamental changes in biodiversity (Andersen and Steidl, 2019; Blaum et al., 2009) and ecosystem processes, like fire switching from lower intensity grass field fires to high-intensity crown fires (Bowman et al., 2020). Additionally, evidence suggests that when trees replace grasses in high rainfall ecosystems it actually results in a reduction in soil carbon (Mureva et al., 2018) and reduces streamflow (Nänni, 1970; Zhao et al., 2012).

1365

1370

Given these concerns, NbS interventions should be viewed with considerable caution before implementation. For African ecosystems, a one-size-fits all approach and the disproportionate global focus on 'carbon', even if well meaning, places considerable risk on ecosystems, and dismisses the paired social-ecological contextualisation and livelihood interdependencies of African ecosystems. The current focus of NbS actions on carbon offsets is likely to exacerbate the degradation of Africa's open and grassy ecosystems, perpetuating a system of transforming African

1375

- Formatted [230]
- Formatted [231]
- Deleted: (Zomer et al., 2008; Russell-Smith et al., 2021; Veldman et al., 2019) [232]
- Formatted [233]
- Deleted: (Dooley et al., 2022).
- Formatted [234]
- Deleted: (Bastin et al., 2019)
- Formatted [235]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted [236]
- Deleted: 5 (Veldman et al., 2019).
- Deleted: also
- Deleted: additional
- Formatted [237]
- Formatted [238]
- Formatted [239]
- Deleted: tree
- Formatted [240]
- Deleted: scale with it being proposed to plant at
- Formatted [241]
- Deleted: in Africa
- Formatted [242]
- Deleted: (Bond et al., 2019).
- Formatted [243]
- Deleted: in Africa
- Formatted [244]
- Deleted: (Bastin et al., 2018; Droissart et al., 2018; Droissart et al., 2018; Torello-Raventos et al., 2013; Veldman et al., 2019) [245]
- Formatted [246]
- Deleted: ,
- Formatted [247]
- Deleted: (Fairhead and Leach, 1996)
- Formatted [248]
- Deleted: (Pausas and Bond, 2019).
- Formatted [249]
- Deleted: (Martin et al., 2021).
- Formatted [250]
- Formatted [251]
- Deleted: (Scholes, 2003; Anadón et al., 2014),
- Formatted [252]
- Deleted: (Andersen and Steidl, 2019; Blaum et al., 2009)
- Formatted [253]
- Deleted: (Bowman et al., 2020).
- Formatted [254]
- Deleted: (Mureva et al., 2018)
- Formatted [255]
- Deleted: (Nänni, 1970; Zhao et al., 2012).
- Formatted [256]
- Deleted: to
- Formatted [257]
- Deleted: offset
- Formatted [258]
- Formatted [227]
- Deleted: 13
- Formatted [228]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted [229]

1430 ecosystems to meet the carbon sequestration goals of those financing such interventions, whilst ignoring equity and justice considerations in Africa and other open ecosystems like the Cerrado. Such an approach perpetuates a legacy of inequity and injustice to the people living in and dependent on these ecosystems. Thus, while NbS actions are promoted as “win-win” solutions, their focus on carbon makes them a poor fit for Africa’s open and grassy ecosystems. This same power dynamic also plays out even in forest ecosystems such as the Amazon where IPLCs become locked into accessing finance from carbon markets that perpetuates unequal burdens (Lapola et al., 2023). These colonial carbon sequestration dynamics, for example where ecosystems like the Amazon or savannas are valued only as carbon sinks rather than a plural biocultural landscape, need to be shifted for a more equitable solution space to address climate tipping points.

1440 We argue that there are many more appropriate interventions to consider than those currently prioritised and glamorised by the global community that will result in more robust co-benefits for both biodiversity and climate change adaptation, while still supporting mitigation efforts. For NbS to work, they must address issues of ecosystem conversion, maintain and/or re-introduce traditional fire- and grazing practices that sustain open-canopies and support a rich herbaceous ground layer, upon which a variety of life form depends (Smit et al., 2010; Bond and Parr, 2010; Maravalhas and Vasconcelos, 2014). Interventions must be context-specific (e.g. biome specific), explicitly designed to increase synergies and reduce trade-offs. This includes protection, appropriate management and restoration of ecosystems. It is critically important to address the historical misclassification of African ecosystems, in particular grassy ecosystems and the misrepresentation of utilised ecosystems as ‘degraded’ by Global North standards. In ecosystems that are utilised for livelihoods, but have reduced woody cover as result (e.g. wood fuel harvesting, charcoal production), appropriate NbS are vastly different to those that would be appropriate for a degraded forest system, but can still provide climate mitigation and biodiversity co-benefits. Global datasets that specifically focus on rangelands and grassland ecosystems, i.e. the Rangelands AtLAS project (www.rangelandsdata.org/atlas/), are important steps in the right direction, but such ‘reclassification’ has been slow to gain the required traction in the policy arena and should be a priority before any finance flows for NbS take place.

1455 5. Discussion: Reframing ‘solutions’ by flipping the colonial paradigm to move towards plural pathways

1460 We argue that it is necessary to provide a more nuanced understanding of what addressing tipping points might look like in practice, who gets to define, fund and drive PTPs, who is supposed to implement them, where they take place, who is expected to benefit and who is expected to lose. These questions are not trivial since the voices of minorities, historically colonised peoples, or future generations can be challenging to access, let alone include. Here, we situate some of the common themes emerging from the case studies and expand on what this means from a tipping points perspective.

1465 5.1. Giving governance power back: highlighting a perspective from the majority world

1470 PTPs can perpetuate climate colonialism, if blindspots of winners and losers are not addressed. Even well-intentioned policies, such as the EU’s Green New Deal that aims to transition energy systems away from fossil fuels whilst avoiding transferring the costs to workers, have the potential to put severe pressure on lands held by Indigenous and marginalized communities and reshape their ecologies into “green sacrifice zones” by reproducing a form of climate colonialism in the name of a just transition (Zografos and Robbins, 2020; Canelas and Carvalho, 2023). Climate colonialism involves “the deepening or expanding of domination of less powerful countries and peoples through initiatives that intensify foreign exploitation of poorer nations’ resources or undermine the sovereignty of native and Indigenous communities in the course of responding to the climate crisis” (Zografos and Robbins, 2020: 543). As shown above, even sectors like conservation could fall into this trap. The agenda underpinning the 30x30 target runs this risk of identifying hotspots for biodiversity investments - thereby inadvertently pushing a narrative whereby these hotspots become ‘sacrifice zones’ that exclude local people from

- Deleted: African
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: offset makes them a poor fit for Africa’s open and grassy ecosystems.
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: rather
- Deleted: other
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: (Smit et al., 2010; Bond and Parr, 2010; Maravalhas and Vasconcelos, 2014).
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: .
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: still is
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: No bullets or numbering
- Deleted: positive
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: them
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: 3
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: Positive tipping points
- Deleted: and create green sacrifice zones
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: just transition (Zografos and Robbins, 2020).
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: (Zografos and Robbins, 2020: 543.
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Deleted: could
- Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold
- Formatted: Page Number
- Deleted: 14
- Formatted: Page Number
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted: Normal, Right

1495 their lands or increase human wildlife conflict. This is particularly important as it highlights the unintended  
 1500 consequences or blindspots of positive tipping points, which are largely well-intentioned deliberate interventions.  
 Sacrifice zones are carefully chosen within a colonial paradigm that marks out regions of high biodiversity to reduce  
 them to resources for conversion (Gómez-Barris, 2017). This extractive view from corporations and governments  
 can meet resistance in the ways in which the local humans and nonhumans that inhabit those territories perceive life  
 1505 as entangled, where the destruction of one parcel affects the rest of the entities and breaks the spiritual heritage in a  
 region (Gómez-Barris, 2017). The violence that Capitalism inflicts on places designated as sacrifice zones can be  
 immediate, but it can also be slow and imperceptible. Such “slow violence” can happen slowly in marginalized  
 communities, under a long period of time and which are almost imperceptible (Nixon, 2013: 6). Engaging with the  
 existing literature is necessary if PTPs are to foreground equity and justice, and may even require a new language in  
 how PTPs are described.

1510 A language that acknowledges the need for dismantling the current global system based on extraction, expropriation,  
 and expulsion that is driving converging social-ecological crises and institutionalised inequality is required  
 (Escobar, 2021). The concept of the Anthropocene- the period in which humans have become the dominant force of  
 change on the planet- has been criticised because it focuses on a singular notion of mankind and does not  
 1515 acknowledge the differential responsibilities and impacts between the world’s richest and poorest (Balcarce, 2021;  
 Habersang, 2022; Cunha, 2015; Arora and Stirling, 2015). Some alternative framings include the Plantationocene  
 referencing the histories of colonialism and race in the development of plantations (Barua, 2023) and linked to this,  
 the Eurocene after drivers of change emerging largely from Europe (Grove, 2017; Juárez, 2021), the Capitalocene  
 1520 referencing capital’s role in the planetary crisis (Moore, 2017), the Plastocene as plastic is now in the sedimentary  
 record (Skinner, 2019), a feminist critique referring to the importance of gender in the Manocene (Ally and Boria,  
 2023) pg 279, and then the Chluthlucene as coined by Haraway (2015, 2016) that talks to the need for messier multi-  
 species assemblages in this new epoch. Indigenous and feminist movements from Chile and Argentina have  
 proposed the term “Terricide” (Buitrago Arévalo, 2022; Millán and Rosemberg, 2021) as a complement to the idea  
 1525 of the Anthropocene. Terricide, instead, names the layers of violence and inequity lived by Indigenous and other  
 marginalized groups when corporations and governments destroy the material ecosystems and spiritual sacred  
 realms of the web of life for profit (Millán and Rosemberg, 2021). As it involves a crime, it demands justice and  
 accountability for the designation, exploitation, and destruction of life in these so-called sacrifice zones. This  
 connects to the legal solutions offered from a Global South perspective in the case studies.

1525 5.2. Dismantling debt and situating sustainability for surfacing burdens and benefits

1530 Similarly, discussions of tipping points need to be aware of the technologies of governance (such as race-making  
 and the processes for labelling countries as indebted or ‘Least Developed’ (LDCs as per the United Nations  
 definition) that enable access to and appropriation of stocks for capitalist resource conversion (Leifsen et al., 2017).  
 For example, the reason companies are willing to invest in carbon offsets is because it is cheaper to pay other  
 countries to store carbon than it is to reduce their own emissions. This equation only works when there are  
 1535 disenfranchised countries with low GDP and high debt willing to sell their carbon-fixing abilities at low prices, i.e.  
 the entire carbon-offset and biodiversity-offset market depends on global inequality to function (Dempsey et al.,  
 2022).

1540 If the questions we ask are aimed at transformation, these cannot neglect how neo-capital paradigms contribute to  
 inequalities and environmental degradation (Sze, 2018). Further, the financialisation of loss arising from crossing  
 biophysical tipping points reinforces these dynamics by trying to attribute a monetary value to existential loss. Most  
 accounts of lived experiences with harm are from rich, not poor, countries and so the epistemological injustices  
 under-represent the intangible harm among the poorest people (Tschakert et al., 2019). There is an important and  
 ethical role of research at the science-policy interface that needs to bring these aspects to light, giving policy-makers

- Formatted [262]
- Deleted:
- Deleted: ¶ [264]
- Formatted [263]
- Formatted [265]
- Deleted: (Gómez-Barris, 2017).
- Formatted [266]
- Deleted: meets
- Formatted [267]
- Deleted: (Gómez-Barris, 2017).
- Formatted [268]
- Deleted: (Nixon, 2013: 6).
- Formatted [269]
- Formatted [270]
- Deleted: (Escobar, 2021).
- Formatted [271]
- Deleted: by many as
- Formatted [272]
- Deleted: (Balcarce, 2021; Habersang, 2022; Cunha, [273]
- Formatted [274]
- Deleted: (Barua, 2023)
- Formatted [275]
- Deleted: (Grove, 2017; Juárez, 2021),
- Formatted [276]
- Deleted: (Moore, 2017),
- Formatted [277]
- Deleted: (Skinner, 2019),
- Deleted: (Ally and Boria, 2023:
- Formatted [278]
- Deleted: (Haraway, 2015, 2016)
- Formatted [279]
- Formatted [280]
- Deleted: (Buitrago Arévalo, 2022; Millán and Roser [281]
- Formatted [282]
- Deleted: indigenous
- Formatted [283]
- Deleted: (Millán and Rosemberg, 2021).
- Formatted [284]
- Deleted: 3
- Formatted [285]
- Formatted [286]
- Deleted: (Leifsen et al., 2017).
- Formatted [287]
- Deleted: .
- Formatted [288]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted [289]
- Deleted: (Sze, 2018).
- Formatted [290]
- Deleted: about
- Formatted [291]
- Deleted: (Tschakert et al., 2019).
- Formatted [292]
- Formatted [293]
- Deleted: 15
- Formatted [294]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted [295]

an urgent wake-up call. [The Tipping points discourse could play a significant role in highlighting these dynamics at the international level, if sufficiently nuanced and tailored to these important critiques.](#)

### 5.3. Foregrounding ethics in science

1625 The role of science in advocating for certain changes or identifying places where changes can or should occur has ethical implications. Ocean conservation planning exercises place a significant fraction of priority areas (e.g. Coral Triangle, Southwest Indian Ocean, Caribbean Sea) within Global South countries (e.g. French Polynesia, The Bahamas, Philippines, Colombia, Indonesia) [\(Jenkins and Van Houtan, 2016; Selig et al., 2014; Zhao et al., 2020\)](#). While important, these scientific exercises hardly discuss the ethical and governance considerations of their results, and local socio-economics needs are either conceptualized as an extra layer in maps (in competition with conservation) or something to be addressed by others in future analyses or by decision-makers at local levels. A related ethical debate on how to identify global priority areas for ecological restoration was sparked by [Fleischman et al \(2022\)](#) in response to a paper by [Strassburg et al \(2022\)](#). As reviewed above, defining these priority areas could be seen as a potential PTP for biodiversity conservation, aiming to fulfil the [GBF 30x30 target](#). The critique [however](#), highlighted the importance of understanding local context, and in particular the viewpoints and values of the peoples in these areas, before designating these areas as appropriate for conservation, especially as “most of the priority areas fell in the Global South, where there is a long history of holding rural and [Indigenous](#) peoples responsible for environmental degradation, while misinterpreting traditional ecosystem management as ‘unsustainable’ and ignoring the political and social processes that make people vulnerable... (and where) previous efforts to compensate people displaced by conservation projects have often failed and are associated with large-scale human-rights violations” [\(Fleischman et al., 2022: E5\)](#). In their response, [Strassburg et al \(2022\)](#) acknowledge this point, but argue that “global spatial-prioritisation analyses can adequately incorporate only scale-independent variables, such as those for which the values are less affected by finer scale contexts”, and that they never intended for their maps to be used as final products for on-the-ground implementation, putting the onus back on fine-scale participatory work to sort out all the complex, messy details.

1650 This is not a singular incident within the ecological sciences. Another study quantifying the potential to mitigate climate change by planting trees [\(Bastin et al., 2018\)](#) was challenged for producing global maps of ‘forest restoration potential’, that were at odds with the local ecology and social needs. [Bastin et al \(2018\)](#) responded by saying “our analysis does not ever address whether any actions ‘should’ or ‘should not’ take place, our analysis simply estimated the biophysical limits of global forest growth by highlighting where trees [‘can exist’](#)”. This response leaves the onus on local authorities to decide whether it is a good idea, with the authors effectively washing their hands of the ethical consequences of producing a map that can be used by some for financial gain at the cost of others. [Tear et al \(2021\)](#) similarly quantified the money that could be made by changing fire regimes in all conservation areas in Africa, and stated that this would have only positive consequences. When challenged on this, again they replied that it was up to the individual conservation managers to decide on their fire management goals, and that they were just presenting options. (It is important to note that the rebuttal to this paper authored by ~20 African land managers and conservation scientists was rejected). Again, this shows a lack of understanding of the power dynamics at play when [‘research’ is produced and then used by outside players with money for particular land management goals when they enter a local social-ecological system.](#)

1665 Policy interventions backed by international finance regimes to set aside conservation areas based on disembodied mapping exercises that meet scientific targets could address biosphere tipping points, whilst at the same time unleashing problematic tipping points of land exclusion and marginalisation. The power of science-based maps, irrespective of how the authors describe them to be used and the caveats included in the associated written material, become powerful objects stimulating action (e.g., finance for carbon markets [is another potential intervention that could lead to a cascading financial tipping points with implications for the integrity of certain ecosystems](#)) with little

Formatted	[... [296]
Deleted: ¶	
Deleted: 2.	
Formatted	[... [297]
Formatted	[... [298]
Deleted:	
Formatted	[... [299]
Deleted:	
Formatted	[... [300]
Deleted: (Jenkins and Van Houtan, 2016; Selig et al.	[... [301]
Formatted	[... [302]
Deleted: Fleischman et al. (2022)	
Deleted: Strassburg et al. (2022) that identified glo	[... [304]
Formatted	[... [303]
Formatted	[... [305]
Deleted: positive tipping point	
Formatted	[... [306]
Deleted: Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework	
Formatted	[... [307]
Deleted: indigenous	
Formatted	[... [308]
Deleted: (Fleischman et al., 2022: E5).	
Deleted: Strassburg et al (2022)	
Formatted	[... [309]
Formatted	[... [310]
Deleted: prioritization	
Formatted	[... [311]
Deleted: Bastin et al. (2018)	
Deleted: "	
Formatted	[... [312]
Formatted	[... [313]
Deleted: potential"	
Deleted: Bastin et al. (2018)	
Formatted	[... [314]
Formatted	[... [315]
Deleted: "	
Deleted: exist	
Formatted	[... [316]
Formatted	[... [317]
Deleted: Tear et al (2021)	
Formatted	[... [318]
Deleted: complex	
Formatted	[... [319]
Deleted: -	
Formatted	[... [320]
Deleted: point	
Formatted	[... [321]
Formatted	[... [293]
Deleted: 16	
Formatted	[... [294]
Deleted: ¶	
Formatted	[... [295]

1720 contextual work being undertaken. The gaze that these disembodied and decontextualised spatial-mapping exercises enable is related to systems that enable investors abroad to bid for exploitation rights to nature, without any understanding of the local dynamics. These dynamics allow for the colonial conservation ideologies and narratives highlighted in the case studies to persist and thereby perpetuate injustices at the expense of the environment, local traditions and culture (Dominguez and Luoma, 2020). To counter this, an improved capacity for self-determination that allows for a better understanding of the diverse conceptions of what 'positive' or 'preferable' states is needed. It also requires a much more reflexive academy that is cognisant of the power they wield when producing 'science'.

1725 5.4. Unpacking what 'positive' tipping points means requires an enabling environment for self-determination

1730 The voices and tones of developments and transformations in the South are often predetermined (Leach et al., 2015) and leave no space for surfacing creativities, authenticities and capacities inherent in these systems. The capacity of the Global South and other marginalised communities to self-determine has been undermined in diverse ways. First, under the guise of sustainability argued by Lyon and Maxwell (2011) as a greenwash that theoretically promises to uplift 'vulnerable' communities and create 'positive' impacts in the Global South, However, often the development frameworks and models that seek to bring positive changes (e.g. payment for ecosystem services initiatives (Bottazzi et al., 2018), carbon trading, renewable energy initiatives) are designed to reduce and disregard local structures, ultimately creating new structures and feedbacks that largely benefit developers. For instance, in recent years, an important literature on the contested effect of Payment for Environmental Services (PES) has flourished, showing controversial effects on participants from local communities (Bottazzi et al., 2018). While in some cases, farmers may be willing to be compensated for their nature conservation efforts in PES programmes (Geussens et al., 2019), such payments are often too little to cover the social and economic opportunity costs for local land users (Hayes et al., 2019; Vedeld et al., 2016). The aftermath is usually a created system that welcomes new forms of valuing (often monetary at the expense of other values), exacerbates existing inequalities and injustices, and cultivates division among communities.

1740 Secondly, there is a tendency for change-advocates from the Global North to 'piggy-back' on existing structures, which are easy-to-work-with and require minimal or no reflection on people's actual needs. Such weakening techniques have maintained a status quo that is constantly prioritising external forces because of associated benefits, while repositioning meaningful community values, efforts and ideas as secondary. For instance, infrastructural developments in the Global South often leave the countries in crippling debts, with impossible alternatives for recovery, which then forces these countries to keep needing external aid. Leaving no options for recovery by continuous exploitation of fault lines, is a state of capture and a systemic colonialism that underpins the contested North-South dynamics (Calvão et al., 2021). Countries end up spending huge amounts of their GDP serving debt, instead of using this to develop their citizens.

1755 The protected areas approach discussed in the case studies emphasises this further. This is not to say that protection for these critical ecosystems is inherently problematic, but it is in who does the protecting and how that matters. In 2022, the Confederation of Indigenous Organisations of the Amazon Basin (COICA) proposed the goal of protecting 80% of the Amazon by 2025 -approved by the International Union for the Conservation of Nature (IUCN)- and joined by 30 countries and 288 civil society organisations. The aim is to stop deforestation and land-use change, and therefore prevent the point of no return- or a negative tipping point (Gaia Amazonas, 2022). From the COICA and an Amazonian perspective, the challenge for the Global Biodiversity Framework agreements is to recognize the role of Indigenous peoples as key actors in safeguarding the biological and cultural diversity of the Amazon, as these communities are seldom included as active actors in conservation goals. Rather, there is the risk of perpetuating the 'fences and fines' model of colonial conservation in Africa that removed people from the land to set up parks where European elites could hunt (Adams, 2008). Instead of for hunting, these protected areas would be for the 'greater good', but would negate the rights of people to their land and ignore their role as custodians of these places for generations, potentially continuing the negative outcomes such as militarisation and increased human-wildlife conflict in the southern Africa case. Indigenous peoples and local communities have co-existed with the forest and land and achieved equal or better conservation results at much lower cost than conventional conservation programs

- Deleted: land and
- Formatted ... [325]
- Formatted ... [326]
- Deleted: Indigenous
- Formatted ... [327]
- Deleted: (Dominguez and Luoma, 2020).
- Formatted ... [328]
- Deleted: 3
- Deleted: improved capacity
- Formatted ... [329]
- Formatted ... [330]
- Deleted: (Leach et al., 2015)
- Formatted ... [332]
- Formatted ... [331]
- Deleted: often self-growing
- Formatted ... [333]
- Deleted: (green transformations)
- Deleted: (Lyon and Maxwell, 2011)
- Deleted: -which
- Formatted ... [334]
- Formatted ... [335]
- Formatted ... [336]
- Deleted: ,
- Formatted ... [337]
- Deleted: (Bottazzi et al., 2018),
- Formatted ... [338]
- Deleted: forms of
- Formatted ... [339]
- Deleted: feedback
- Formatted ... [340]
- Deleted: local communities'
- Deleted: (Bottazzi et al., 2018).
- Formatted ... [341]
- Formatted ... [342]
- Deleted: (Geussens et al., 2019),
- Formatted ... [343]
- Deleted: (Hayes et al., 2019; Vedeld et al., 2016).
- Formatted ... [344]
- Deleted: meaningful
- Formatted ... [345]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted ... [346]
- Deleted: ,
- Deleted: which
- Deleted: of
- Formatted ... [347]
- Formatted ... [348]
- Formatted ... [349]
- Deleted: ,
- Formatted ... [350]
- Deleted: underpin
- Formatted ... [351]
- Deleted: north-south
- Formatted ... [352]
- Deleted: (Calvão et al., 2021).
- Formatted ... [353]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted ... [354]
- Deleted: (Gaia Amazonas, 2022).
- Formatted ... [355]
- Deleted: indigenous
- Formatted ... [356]

1835 [\(ICCA Consortium, 2021; Fa et al., 2020; Garnett et al., 2018\)](#). However, in Africa, Asia, and Latin America, governments and NGOs are setting aside vast areas of indigenous and land for conservation and the good of the planet [\(Dawson et al., 2023\)](#). From an equity and justice perspective, it is clear that conservation projects in regions as the Amazon and the Congo Basin cannot take the form of strict protection as there have always been human communities living in this area; [Indigenous](#) peoples that have cohabited with other lifeforms [\(Barlow et al., 2012; Hecht, 2003\)](#).

1840 [As illustrated in many of the cases, creating](#) a more decolonial future in the [PTP or just](#) transformation landscape would mean allowing local voices, tones and capacities to surface in and by themselves [\(Leach et al., 2015\)](#), to [self-organise](#) and design the changes, as they see and need them [\(Shear, 2014; Rocha et al., 2022\)](#). Resources provided in their support must then be informed by locally identified needs and framings, without stringent, unrealistic and locally exploitative terms conditions and indicators of change. It is important to note that 'resources' [range](#) from development aid, through to paying for historic damage (e.g. historical emissions in the climate change negotiations) and then paying for what "everyone" cares about, e.g. investment in conservation. Development aid would be classified as support, whereas the latter two are not necessarily in direct support of countries with biodiversity/sequestration potential, but rather are investing in a specific agenda for the planetary good- i.e. to avoid negative tipping points. However, this cannot be undertaken at the expense of local needs without any commensurate change in the behaviours of wealthy countries whose development has largely led us to this crisis [\(Hickel et al., 2022; Hickel and Slamersak, 2022\)](#). [As recommended by Obura et al., \(2023\)](#), any positive changes in the human-nature discourse must uphold and respect local rights and voices, as such bear self-propelling agencies for needed changes.

## 1850 6. Conclusion: Recommendations for a more transgressive practice

1855 [The main take-home message from this paper is that when used in the context of climate science or ecological phenomena the attribution of positivity or negativity to tipping points can be a subjective and often misleading call. The case studies reveal norms and expectations that have the potential to reproduce status quo dynamics e.g. colonial and power relationships of natural resource exploitation and human inequality, despite the best intentions to avoid Earth system tipping points. The language of PTPs can seem like transformative change can be achieved easily when leveraging non-linear dynamics, but we counter this with current examples that showcase that this is not necessarily the correct message. With these arguments in mind, we](#) conclude with a set of recommendations that should be considered not only when discussing [tipping points](#), but in all considerations of [social-ecological](#) interventions.

### 1860 6.1. Acknowledge the [blindspots](#) of winners and losers.

1865 Denying that there are winners and losers in interventions to avert climate disaster limits our solution space to the point of impossibility as we seek to achieve win-win situations. The kind of hard decisions around implementing transformations that are required to stay within a safe and just operating space no longer allow for this kind of thinking. Within this framing, [we should](#) be very clear about who has the capacity to lose whilst maintaining their dignity due to their current privilege and power versus those who are already so marginalised that they have no space to lose anymore. It is important to bear in mind that discussions about how to compensate the losers will by definition maintain the status quo of the winners and so we should instead be shifting a narrative towards how the current winners will repay their debt to society and the planet [and how to transition beyond consumerism](#), thereby expanding the range of [PTPs](#) available.

### 1870 6.2. No more sacrifice zones in the quest to address biophysical tipping points.

1875 It is unconscionable that parts of the world and certain people remain sidelined without equal rights to self-determination, but exist merely to fulfil the needs of others. Such considerations when proposing solutions, of who is going to lose and whether this perpetuates historical injustices, needs to be at the heart of any discussion about

Deleted: (ICCA Consortium, 2021).

Formatted

[361]

Deleted: (Dawson et al., 2023).

Formatted

[362]

Deleted: indigenous

Deleted: (Barlow et al., 2012; Hecht, 2003).

Formatted

[363]

Formatted

[364]

Deleted: ¶

[365]

Deleted: positive

Formatted

[366]

Formatted

[367]

Deleted: (Leach et al., 2015),

Formatted

[368]

Deleted: determine

Formatted

[369]

Deleted: (Shear, 2014).

Formatted

[370]

Deleted: come for various reasons ranging

Formatted

[371]

Deleted: . As recommended by Obura et al., (2023),

Formatted

[372]

Formatted

[374]

Formatted

[373]

Deleted: We

Formatted

[375]

Deleted: positive

Deleted: environmental

Formatted

[376]

Formatted

[377]

Deleted: 4

Deleted: blindspot

Formatted

[378]

Formatted

[379]

Formatted

[380]

Deleted: positive tipping points

Formatted

[381]

Deleted: 4

Formatted

[382]

Formatted

[358]

Deleted: 18

Formatted

[359]

Deleted: ¶

Formatted

[360]

1920  
1925  
1930  
1935  
1940  
1945  
1950  
1955  
1960

enabling [PTPs or addressing Earth system](#) tipping points. Further, the exclusion of non-human voices from decision-making further perpetuates an injustice. Interspecies justice as a core component of earth system justice means we need to do a better job at thinking beyond just human needs and drawing more on knowledge systems that see an indivisibility between humans and non-human species as having the right to live and thrive on this planet.

[6.3. Engage with what PTPs are desirable and from whose perspective.](#)  
There needs to be a deep engagement [with the](#) information, knowledge and interventions [for sustainability](#) transformations that are truly equitable and that spread the burden of change to those that have benefited most from the current system, rather than further marginalising the most vulnerable. Companies and scientists producing decision tools and solutions need to explicitly recognise the risks and trade-offs associated with their solutions: i.e. together with maps of where trees can be planted, or biodiversity conserved, there should be information on the consequences and contact information for people working in these locations who can help to assess whether the interventions are ultimately beneficial to the people living there. The power dynamics of, for example, a global model (e.g. of carbon sequestration areas) that delineates impacts on local people and places necessitates a deep engagement with justice in thinking through the ethics of generating information that could lead to potential 'positive' tipping points (e.g. a finance scramble to fund tree-planting). There is a critical need for researchers working on tipping points [to reflect on how their findings can be used by other actors to drive either reformist or non-reformist agendas that dismantle a system](#) (Engler and Engler, 2021). [Humility rather than hubris should be a core principle when offering new research into the discourse on tipping points](#) (See Terry et al (2024) on futures).

[6.4. Mainstream equity and justice into governance of PTPs.](#)  
Ensure that the six equity dimensions (Bennett, 2022) sit at the heart of [tipping points](#) discourse. To do so, biodiversity protection and governance need to acknowledge rights, values, visions, knowledge, and needs of local communities in policies (i.e. recognitional equity) as well as to ensure an inclusive and participatory decision-making process (i.e. procedural equity). Biodiversity and well-being outcomes (as well as potential harms) should be balanced (i.e. distributional equity), safeguarding the interests of disadvantaged or marginalized groups, including nonhuman species and ecosystems (i.e. environmental equity). Leadership and participatory skills within local communities should be fostered and improved to allow local engagement in management activities (i.e. management equity). Emphasis should be also placed on qualitative factors such as equity and justice of protected areas (i.e. contextual equity) (Pickering et al., 2022) to move beyond over-simplistic quantitative indicators [and targets](#) (e.g. how much area is protected and where). Failing to address any of these dimensions may result in reproducing historical injustices and simply 'kicks the tipping point down the road'. Resistance movements such as "Blue Justice", a grass-root initiative to safeguard a secure and viable space for small-scale fisheries in the Blue Economy, (Blythe et al., 2023) are examples of what is needed to ensure that the fundamental structures of unsustainability are dismantled.

[6.5. Decolonise the solution space of what is needed to address tipping points.](#)  
[Allow space for alternatives that do not come from a Western-dominated perspective](#) (Yusoff, 2018; Yusoff and Gabrys, 2011). [Let animism and entanglement be an alternative to dichotomies between people and nature and sectoral approaches that relegate the environment as lesser than the economy. Be open to alternative economic models based on regeneration beyond growth, not on extractivism. Identify models where private property is not seen as the only possible solution to the allegation of the tragedy of the commons, and employ real alternatives such as collective ownership that have been in place for generations in many parts of the world. The right to nature and ecocide examples offer existing possibilities, but there is a need for us to be more imaginative in how we can foreground options beyond Western ideologies.](#)

- Deleted: positive
- Formatted ... [386]
- Deleted: 4
- Deleted: positive tipping points
- Formatted ... [387]
- Formatted ... [388]
- Deleted: in what
- Deleted: can lead to
- Formatted ... [389]
- Formatted ... [390]
- Deleted: (both positive societal and negative biophysical)
- Deleted: (improve and thereby more deeply entren ... [392]
- Formatted ... [391]
- Formatted ... [393]
- Deleted: (reforms
- Deleted: ) (Engler and Engler, 2021
- Formatted ... [394]
- Formatted ... [395]
- Deleted: 4.
- Moved down [4]: Decolonise the solution space of what is
- Deleted: Allow space for alternatives that do not co ... [398]
- Moved down [5]: Let animism and entanglement be an
- Deleted: Identify models where private property is ... [400]
- Deleted: social tipping points.
- Formatted ... [396]
- Formatted ... [397]
- Formatted ... [399]
- Formatted ... [401]
- Formatted ... [402]
- Deleted: (Bennett, 2022)
- Deleted: social
- Formatted ... [403]
- Formatted ... [404]
- Deleted: )(Pickering et al., 2022)
- Formatted ... [405]
- Deleted: (Blythe et al., 2023) are
- Formatted ... [406]
- Deleted: ¶
- Moved (insertion) [4]
- Formatted ... [407]
- Moved (insertion) [5]
- Formatted ... [408]
- Formatted ... [383]
- Deleted: 19
- Formatted ... [384]
- Deleted: ¶
- Formatted ... [385]

Positionality statement

All the authors are either from the Global South or, if from the Global North, identify as BIPOC. As such, we have a specific agenda to articulate a reflexive position on the concept of tipping points from this perspective, which is often marginalised due to the dominance of US and European research in this space. We share reflections and insights from our working experience and hope in this way to provide some more nuance and context to the discussion of tipping points. Our audience is therefore mainly the well-intentioned researchers who are proposing notions of positive tipping points to ensure that the aims of sustainable, equitable and just futures are centred in this research and to emphasise that reflexive caution is needed.

Author contribution

LP conceptualised the paper and prepared the initial draft together with IG, TA, DJA, SArch, SAr, AC, TPC, KC, TLF, JR, NSI, OS and SV. MA, DMK, IJA, DMP, DO, PP, FRC, NSI and URS edited and reviewed the draft.

Competing interests

The authors declare that they have no conflict of interest.

Acknowledgements

LP is funded by the Future Ecosystems for Africa Programme in partnership with Oppenheimer Generations Research and Conservation and by the Swedish Research Council FORMAS Project No 2020-00670. SV gratefully acknowledges the financial support from EQUALSEA (Transformative adaptation towards ocean equity) project, under the European Horizon 2020 Program, ERC Consolidator (Grant Agreement # 101002784) funded by the European Research Council. K.C. is funded by the National Research Foundation (NRF) Global Change Social Science Research Programme (GCSSRP V2), Grant UID: 129482. DJA received funding from UC Santa Barbara's Benioff Ocean Science Laboratory. TLF acknowledges the generous continuing support of the Claude Leon Foundation.

References

Adam, R.: Elephant treaties: The colonial legacy of the biodiversity crisis. - Google Search, University Press of New England, 2014.  
Adams, B.: Green Development: Environment and Sustainability in a Developing World, 3rd ed., Routledge, London, 480 pp., https://doi.org/10.4324/9780203929711, 2008.  
Adamson, J., Evans, M. M., and Stein, R.: The Environmental Justice Reader: Politics, Poetics, & Pedagogy, University of Arizona Press, 406 pp., 2002.  
Ajanovic, A. and Haas, R.: Electric vehicles: solution or new problem?, Environment, Development and Sustainability, 20, 7–22, https://doi.org/10.1007/s10668-018-0190-3, 2018.  
Akchurin, M.: Constructing the Rights of Nature: Constitutional Reform, Mobilization, and Environmental Protection in Ecuador, Law & Social Inquiry, 40, 937–968, https://doi.org/10.1111/lsi.12141, 2015.  
Allan, J. R., Possingham, H. P., Atkinson, S. C., Waldron, A., Di Marco, M., Butchart, S. H. M., Adams, V. M., Kissling, W. D., Worsdell, T., Sandbrook, C., Gibbon, G., Kumar, K., Mehta, P., Maron, M., Williams, B. A., Jones, K. R., Wintle, B. A., Reside, A. E., and Watson, J. E. M.: The minimum land area requiring conservation attention to safeguard biodiversity. Science, 376, 1094–1101, https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abc9127, 2022.  
Allen, M. R., Friedlingstein, P., Girardin, C. A. J., Jenkins, S., Malhi, Y., Mitchell-Larson, E., Peters, G. P., and Rajamani, L.: Net Zero: Science, Origins, and Implications, Annu. Rev. Environ. Resour., 47, 849–887, https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-environ-112320-105050, 2022.

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Justified, Line spacing: Multiple 1,36 li

**Deleted:** DA

**Deleted:** KC,

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Deleted:** NSI, Nst

**Deleted:** T

**Deleted:** AG

**Deleted:** JR

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Deleted:** , SArch, OS are

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

**Formatted:** Space After: 8 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,08 li

**Deleted:** Adam, R.: Elephant treaties: The colonial legacy of the biodiversity crisis. - Google Search, University Press of New England, 2014.

**Deleted:** Adams, B.: Green Development: Environment and Sustainability in a Developing World, 3rd ed., Routledge, London, 480 pp., https://doi.org/10.4324/9780203929711, 2008.

**Deleted:** Adamson, J., Evans, M. M., and Stein, R.: The Environmental Justice Reader: Politics, Poetics, & Pedagogy, University of Arizona Press, 406 pp., 2002.

**Deleted:** Ajanovic, A. and Haas, R.: Electric vehicles: solution or new problem?, Environment, Development and Sustainability, 20, 7–22, https://doi.org/10.1007/s10668-018-0190-3, 2018.

**Deleted:** Akchurin, M.: Constructing the Rights of Nature: Constitutional Reform, Mobilization, and Environmental Protection in Ecuador, Law & Social Inquiry, 40, 937–968, https://doi.org/10.1111/lsi.12141, 2015.

**Deleted:** Allan, J. R., Possingham, H. P., Atkinson, S. C., Waldron, A., Di Marco, M., Butchart, S. H. M., Adams, V. M., Kissling, W. D., Worsdell, T., Sandbrook, C., Gibbon, G., Kumar, K., Mehta, P., Maron, M., Williams, B. A., Jones, K. R., Wintle, B. A., Reside, A. E., and Watson, J. E. M.: The minimum land area requiring conservation attention to safeguard biodiversity. Science, 376, 1094–1101, https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abc9127, 2022.

**Deleted:** Allen, M. R., Friedlingstein, P., Girardin, C. A. J., Jenkins, S., Malhi, Y., Mitchell-Larson, E., Peters, G. P., and Rajamani, L.: Net Zero: Science, Origins, and Implications, Annu. Rev. Environ. Resour., 47, 849–887, https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-environ-112320-105050, 2022.

**Deleted:** 20

**Deleted:** ¶

**Formatted:** Page Number

**Formatted:** Page Number

**Formatted:** Normal, Right

2200 [Ally, M. C. and Boria, D.: Earthly Engagements: Reading Sartre After the Holocene, Rowman & Littlefield, 351 pp., 2023.](#)

2205 [Amon, D. J., Gollner, S., Morato, T., Smith, C. R., Chen, C., Christiansen, S., Currie, B., Drazen, J. C., Fukushima, T., Gianni, M., Gjerde, K. M., Gooday, A. J., Grillo, G. G., Haeckel, M., Joyini, T., Ju, S.-J., Levin, L. A., Metaxas, A., Mianowicz, K., Molodtsova, T. N., Narberhaus, I., Orcutt, B. N., Swaddling, A., Tuhumwire, J., Palacio, P. U., Walker, M., Weaver, P., Xu, X.-W., Mulalip, C. Y., Edwards, P. E. T., and Pickens, C.: Assessment of scientific gaps related to the effective environmental management of deep-seabed mining, \*Marine Policy\*, 138, 105006, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2022.105006>, 2022a.](#)

2210 [Amon, D. J., Levin, L. A., Metaxas, A., Mudd, G. M., and Smith, C. R.: Heading to the deep end without knowing how to swim: Do we need deep-seabed mining?, \*One Earth\*, 5, 220–223, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oneear.2022.02.013>, 2022b.](#)

2215 [Anadón, J. D., Sala, O. E., Turner, B. L., and Bennett, E. M.: Effect of woody-plant encroachment on livestock production in North and South America, \*Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences\*, 111, 12948–12953, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1320585111>, 2014.](#)

2220 [Andersen, E. M. and Steidl, R. J.: Woody plant encroachment restructures bird communities in semiarid grasslands, \*Biological Conservation\*, 240, 108276, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2019.108276>, 2019.](#)

2225 [Archer, E., Dziba, L., Kalemaji, J. M., Maela, A., Walters, M., Biggs, R., Cormier-Salem, M.-C., DeClerck, F., Mariteuw, C. D., Dunham, A., Failer, P., Gordon, C., Harhash, K. A., Kasisi, R., Kizito, F., Nyingi, W., Oguge, N., Balgis, O. E., Stringer, L., de Moraes, L. T., Assogbadjo, A., Egoh, B., Halmy, M., Heubach, K., Mensah, A., Pereira, L., and Sitas, N.: Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services on the African continent – what is changing, and what are our options?, \*Environmental Development\*, 2020.](#)

2230 [Arias Schreiber, M., Chuenpagdee, R., and Jentoft, S.: Blue Justice and the co-production of hermeneutical resources for small-scale fisheries, \*Marine Policy\*, 137, 104959, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2022.104959>, 2022.](#)

2235 [Armstrong McKay, D. I., Staal, A., Abrams, J. F., Winkelmann, R., Sakschewski, B., Loriani, S., Fetzer, I., Cornell, S. E., Rockström, J., and Lenton, T. M.: Exceeding 1.5°C global warming could trigger multiple climate tipping points, \*Science\*, 377, eabn7950, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abn7950>, 2022.](#)

2240 [Arora, S. and Stirling, A. C.: Stoking the Anthropocene, 2015.](#)

2245 [Azevedo, M., Campagnol, N., Hagenbruch, T., Lala, A., and Ramsbottom, O.: Lithium and cobalt: A tale of two commodities, McKinsey, New York, NY, US, 2018.](#)

2250 [Balcarce, G.: Políticas de bom viver: Olhares sobre o terricídio e espiritualidades não modernas, \*ABATIRÁ\*, 2, 446–458, 2021.](#)

[Ban, N. C., Gurney, G. G., Marshall, N. A., Whitney, C. K., Mills, M., Gelcich, S., Bennett, N. J., Meehan, M. C., Butler, C., Ban, S., Tran, T. C., Cox, M. E., and Breslow, S. J.: Well-being outcomes of marine protected areas, \*Nat Sustain\*, 2, 524–532, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41893-019-0306-2>, 2019.](#)

[Banerjee, O., Cicowiez, M., Macedo, M. N., Malek, Ž., Verburg, P. H., Goodwin, S., Vargas, R., Rattis, L., Bagstad, K. J., Brando, P. M., Coe, M. T., Neill, C., Marti, O. D., and Murillo, J. Á.: Can we avert an Amazon tipping point? The economic and environmental costs, \*Environ. Res. Lett.\*, 17, 125005, <https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/aca3b8>, 2022.](#)

[Banza Lubaba Nkulu, C., Casas, L., Haufroid, V., De Putter, T., Saenen, N. D., Kayembe-Kitenge, T., Musa Obadia, P., Kyanika Wa Mukoma, D., Lunda Ilunga, J.-M., Nawrot, T. S., Luboya Numbi, O., Smolders, E., and Nemery, B.: Sustainability of artisanal mining of cobalt in DR Congo, \*Nat Sustain\*, 1, 495–504, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41893-018-0139-4>, 2018.](#)

[Barlow, J., Gardner, T. A., Lees, A. C., Parry, L., and Peres, C. A.: How pristine are tropical forests? An ecological perspective on the pre-Columbian human footprint in Amazonia and implications for contemporary conservation, \*Biological Conservation\*, 151, 45–49, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2011.10.013>, 2012.](#)

[Barua, M.: Plantationocene: A Vegetal Geography, \*Annals of the American Association of Geographers\*, 113, 13–29, <https://doi.org/10.1080/24694452.2022.2094326>, 2023.](#)

[Bastin, J.-F., Rutishauser, E., Kellner, J. R., Saatchi, S., Péliissier, R., Hérault, B., Slik, F., Bogaert, J., De Cannière, C., Marshall, A. R., Poulsen, J., Alvarez-Loyayza, P., Andrade, A., Angbonga-Basia, A., Araujo-Murakami, A., Arroyo, L., Ayyappan, N., de Azevedo, C. P., Banki, O., Barbier, N., Barroso, J. G., Beeckman, H., Bitariho, R., Boeckx, P., Boehning-Gaese, K., Brandão, H., Brearley, F. Q., Breuer Ndongou Hockemba, M., Brienen, R., Camargo, J. L. C., Campos-Arceiz, A., Cassart, B., Chave, J., Chazdon, R., Chuyong, G., Clark, D. B., Clark, C. J., Condit, R., Honorio Coronado, E. N., Davidar, P., de Haulleville, T., Descroix, L., Doucet, J.-L., Dourdain, A., Droissart, V., Duncan, T., Silva Espejo, J., Espinosa, S., Farwig, N., Fayolle, A., Feldpausch, T. R., Ferraz, A.,](#)

Deleted: 21  
 Deleted: 1  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Normal, Right

2255 [Fletcher, C., Gajapersad, K., Gillet, J.-F., Amaral, I. L. do, Gonmadje, C., Grogan, J., Harris, D., Herzog, S. K., Homeier, J., Hubau, W., Hubbell, S. P., Hufkens, K., Hurtado, J., Kamdem, N. G., Kearsley, E., Kenfack, D., Kessler, M., Labrière, N., Laumonier, Y., Laurance, S., Laurance, W. F., Lewis, S. L., Libalah, M. B., Ligot, G., Lloyd, J., Lovejoy, T. E., Malhi, Y., Marimon, B. S., Marimon Junior, B. H., Martin, E. H., Matus, P., Meyer, V., Mendoza Bautista, C., Monteagudo-Mendoza, A., Mtui, A., Neill, D., Parada Gutierrez, G. A., Pardo, G., Parren, M., Parthasarathy, N., Phillips, O. L., Pitman, N. C. A., Ploton, P., Ponette, Q., Ramesh, B. R., Razafimahaimodison, J.-C., Réjou-Méchain, M., et al.: Pan-tropical prediction of forest structure from the largest trees, \*Global Ecology and Biogeography\*, 27, 1366–1383, <https://doi.org/10.1111/geb.12803>, 2018.](#)

2260 [Bastin, J.-F., Finegold, Y., Garcia, C., Mollicone, D., Rezende, M., Routh, D., Zohner, C. M., and Crowther, T. W.: The global tree restoration potential, \*Science\*, 365, 76–79, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.aax0848>, 2019.](#)

2265 [Bastos Lima, M. G., Harring, N., Jagers, S. C., Löfgren, Å., Persson, U. M., Sjöstedt, M., Brülde, B., Langlet, D., Steffen, W., and Alpizar, F.: Large-scale collective action to avoid an Amazon tipping point - key actors and interventions, \*Current Research in Environmental Sustainability\*, 3, 100048, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.crsust.2021.100048>, 2021.](#)

2270 [Bennett, N. J.: Mainstreaming Equity and Justice in the Ocean, \*Frontiers in Marine Science\*, 9, 2022.](#)

[Bennett, N. J. and Dearden, P.: Why local people do not support conservation: Community perceptions of marine protected area livelihood impacts, governance and management in Thailand, \*Marine Policy\*, 44, 107–116, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2013.08.017>, 2014.](#)

2275 [Bennett, N. J., Blythe, J., Cisneros-Montemayor, A. M., Singh, G. G., and Sumaila, U. R.: Just Transformations to Sustainability, \*Sustainability\*, 11, 3881, <https://doi.org/10.3390/su11143881>, 2019.](#)

[Bentley, R. A., Maddison, E. J., Ranner, P. H., Bissell, J., Caiado, C. C. S., Bhatanacharoen, P., Clark, T., Botha, M., Akinbami, F., Hollow, M., Michie, R., Huntley, B., Curtis, S. E., and Garnett, P.: Social tipping points and Earth systems dynamics, \*Frontiers in Environmental Science\*, 2, 2014.](#)

[Berros, M. V.: Challenges for the Implementation of the Rights of Nature: Ecuador and Bolivia as the First Instances of an Expanding Movement, \*Latin American Perspectives\*, 48, 192–205, <https://doi.org/10.1177/0094582X211004898>, 2021.](#)

2280 [Biemann, U. and Tavares, P.: Forest law = Selva jurídica, First edition., 2014.](#)

[Biggs, R., Peterson, G. D., and Rocha, J. C.: The regime shifts database: A framework for analyzing regime shifts in social-ecological systems, \*Ecology and Society\*, 23, <https://doi.org/10.5751/ES-10264-230309>, 2018.](#)

2285 [Blaum, N., Seymour, C., Rossmannith, E., Schwager, M., and Jeltsch, F.: Changes in arthropod diversity along a land use driven gradient of shrub cover in savanna rangelands: identification of suitable indicators, \*Biodivers Conserv\*, 18, 1187–1199, <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10531-008-9498-x>, 2009.](#)

[Blythe, J., Silver, J., Evans, L., Armitage, D., Bennett, N. J., Moore, M. L., Morrison, T. H., and Brown, K.: The Dark Side of Transformation: Latent Risks in Contemporary Sustainability Discourse, \*Antipode\*, <https://doi.org/10.1111/anti.12405>, 2018.](#)

2290 [Blythe, J. L., Gill, D. A., Claudet, J., Bennett, N. J., Gurney, G. G., Baggio, J. A., Ban, N. C., Bernard, M. L., Brun, V., Darling, E. S., Franco, A. D., Epstein, G., Franks, P., Horan, R., Jupiter, S. D., Lau, J., Lazzari, N., Mahajan, S. L., Mangubhai, S., Naggea, J., Turner, R. A., and Zafra-Calvo, N.: Blue justice: A review of emerging scholarship and resistance movements, \*Cambridge Prisms: Coastal Futures\*, 1, e15, <https://doi.org/10.1017/cft.2023.4>, 2023.](#)

2295 [Boillat, S., Martin, A., Adams, T., Daniel, D., Llopis, J., Zepharovich, E., Oberlack, C., Sonderegger, G., Bottazzi, P., Corbera, E., Ifejika Speranza, C., and Pascual, U.: Why telecoupling research needs to account for environmental justice, \*Journal of Land Use Science\*, 15, 1–10, <https://doi.org/10.1080/1747423X.2020.1737257>, 2020.](#)

[Bond, W. J. and Parr, C. L.: Beyond the forest edge: Ecology, diversity and conservation of the grassy biomes, \*Biological Conservation\*, 143, 2395–2404, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2009.12.012>, 2010.](#)

2300 [Bond, W. J., Stevens, N., Midgley, G. F., and Lehmann, C. E. R.: The Trouble with Trees: Afforestation Plans for Africa, \*Trends Ecol Evol\*, 34, 963–965, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tree.2019.08.003>, 2019.](#)

[Bottazzi, P., Wiik, E., Crespo, D., and Jones, J. P. G.: Payment for Environmental “Self-Service”: Exploring the Links Between Farmers’ Motivation and Additionality in a Conservation Incentive Programme in the Bolivian Andes, \*Ecological Economics\*, 150, 11–23, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolecon.2018.03.032>, 2018.](#)

2305 [Boulton, C. A., Lenton, T. M., and Boers, N.: Pronounced loss of Amazon rainforest resilience since the early 2000s, \*Nature Climate Change\*, 12, 271–278, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41558-022-01287-8>, 2022.](#)

[Bowman, D. M. J. S., Kolden, C. A., Abatzoglou, J. T., Johnston, F. H., van der Werf, G. R., and Flannigan, M.: Vegetation fires in the Anthropocene, \*Nature Reviews Earth and Environment\*, 1, 500–515, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s43017-020-0085-3>, 2020.](#)

[Bragança, A. C. H., Moutinho, P., da Silva Rocha, R., Alencar, A., Laureto, L., Castro, I., and Azevedo-Ramos, C.:](#)

Deleted: 22

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

- 2310 [Climate lawsuits could protect Brazilian Amazon, \*Science\*, 373, 403–404, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abk1981>, 2021.](https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abk1981)  
 Bremer, L. L., Keeler, B., Pascua, P., Walker, R., and Sterling, E.: Chapter 5 - Nature-based solutions, sustainable development, and equity, in: *Nature-based Solutions and Water Security*, edited by: Cassin, J., Matthews, J. H., and Gunn, E. L., Elsevier, 81–105, <https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-819871-1.00016-6>, 2021.
- 2315 Brook, B. W., Ellis, E. C., Perring, M. P., Mackay, A. W., and Blomqvist, L.: Does the terrestrial biosphere have planetary tipping points?, *Trends in Ecology & Evolution*, 1–6, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tree.2013.01.016>, 2013.  
 Buitrago Arévalo, L.: Estrategias discursivas de reexistencia en defensa de la vida: nociones emergentes de comunalización en movimientos de mujeres de Abya Yala, *Ecología Política*, 63, 27–35, 2022.
- 2320 Büscher, B. and Fletcher, R.: Under Pressure: Conceptualising Political Ecologies of Green Wars, *Conservation and Society*, 16, 105–113, 2018.  
 Büscher, B. and Fletcher, R.: Towards Convivial Conservation, *Conservation & Society*, 17, 283–296, 2019.  
 Büscher, B. and Fletcher, R.: *The Conservation Revolution: Radical Ideas for Saving Nature Beyond the Anthropocene*, Verso, London, U.K., 2020.  
 Büscher, B. and Ramutsindela, M.: Green violence: Rhino poaching and the war to save Southern Africa’s peace parks, *African Affairs*, 115, 1–22, <https://doi.org/10.1093/afraf/adv058>, 2016.
- 2325 Calvão, F., Medonald, C. E. A., and Bolay, M.: Cobalt mining and the corporate outsourcing of responsibility in the Democratic Republic of Congo, *The Extractive Industries and Society*, 8, 100884, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.exis.2021.02.004>, 2021.
- 2330 Campbell, G. A.: The cobalt market revisited, *Miner Econ*, 33, 21–28, <https://doi.org/10.1007/s13563-019-00173-8>, 2020.  
 Canelas, J. and Carvalho, A.: The dark side of the energy transition: Extractivist violence, energy (in)justice and lithium mining in Portugal, *Energy Research & Social Science*, 100, 103096, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.erss.2023.103096>, 2023.
- 2335 Cano Pecharroman, L.: Rights of Nature: Rivers That Can Stand in Court, *Resources* 2018, Vol. 7, Page 13, 7, 13, <https://doi.org/10.3390/RESOURCES7010013>, 2018.  
 Carmenta, R., Barlow, J., Bastos Lima, M. G., Berenguer, E., Choiruzzad, S., Estrada-Carmona, N., França, F., Kallis, G., Killick, E., Lees, A., Martin, A., Pascual, U., Pettorelli, N., Reed, J., Rodriguez, I., Steward, A. M., Sunderland, T., Vira, B., Zaehringer, J. G., and Hicks, C.: Connected Conservation: Rethinking conservation for a telecoupled world, *Biological Conservation*, 282, 110047, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2023.110047>, 2023.
- 2340 Carrasco, S. and Madariaga, A.: The Resource Curse Returns?, *NACLA Report on the Americas*, 54, 445–452, <https://doi.org/10.1080/10714839.2022.2145132>, 2022.  
 CBD: COP15: Final text of Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework, 2022.  
 Chao, S., Bolender, K., and Kirksey, E. (Eds.): *The Promise of Multispecies Justice*, Duke University Press, Durham, NC, 296 pp., 2022.
- 2345 Cunha, D.: The geology of the ruling class?, *The Anthropocene Review*, 2, 262–266, <https://doi.org/10.1177/2053019615607069>, 2015.  
 Dawson, A., Longo, F., and Survival International: *Decolonize Conservation: Global Voices for Indigenous Self-Determination, Land, and a World in Common*, Common Notions, New York, NY, US, 2023.
- 2350 De Santo, E. M.: Missing marine protected area (MPA) targets: How the push for quantity over quality undermines sustainability and social justice, *Journal of Environmental Management*, 124, 137–146, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jenvman.2013.01.033>, 2013.  
 Deberdt, R.: The Democratic Republic of the Congo (DRC)’s response to artisanal cobalt mining: The Entreprise Générale du Cobalt (EGC), *The Extractive Industries and Society*, 8, 101013, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.exis.2021.101013>, 2021.
- 2355 Dempsey, J., Irvine-Broque, A., Bigger, P., Christiansen, J., Muchhala, B., Nelson, S., Rojas-Marchini, F., Shapiro-Garza, E., Schuldt, A., and DiSilvestro, A.: Biodiversity targets will not be met without debt and tax justice, *Nat Ecol Evol*, 6, 237–239, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41559-021-01619-5>, 2022.
- 2360 Dinerstein, E., Vynne, C., Sala, E., Joshi, A. R., Fernando, S., Lovejoy, T. E., Mayorga, J., Olson, D., Asner, G. P., Baillie, J. E. M., Burgess, N. D., Burkart, K., Noss, R. F., Zhang, Y. P., Baccini, A., Birch, T., Hahn, N., Joppa, L. N., and Wikramanayake, E.: A Global Deal For Nature: Guiding principles, milestones, and targets, *Science Advances*, 5, eaaw2869, <https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.aaw2869>, 2019.  
 Dinerstein, E., Joshi, A. R., Vynne, C., Lee, A. T. L., Pharand-Deschênes, F., França, M., Fernando, S., Birch, T., Burkart, K., Asner, G. P., and Olson, D.: A “Global Safety Net” to reverse biodiversity loss and stabilize Earth’s climate, *Science Advances*, 6, eaab2824, <https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.aab2824>, 2020.

Deleted: 23

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

- 2365 [Dominguez, L. and Luoma, C.: Decolonising Conservation Policy: How Colonial Land and Conservation Ideologies Persist and Perpetuate Indigenous Injustices at the Expense of the Environment, \*Land\*, 9, <https://doi.org/10.3390/land9030065>, 2020.](#)
- 2370 [Dooley, K., Keith, H., Larson, A., Catacora-Vargas, G., Carton, W., Christiansen, K., Enokenwaa Baa, O., Frechette, A., Hugh, S., Ivetic, N., Lim, L., Lund, J., Luqman, M., Mackey, M., Monterroso, I., Ojiha, H., Perfecto, I., Riamit, K., Robiou de Pont, Y., and Young, V.: The Land Gap Report, \*Land Gap, Global\*, 2022.](#)
- [Downing, A. S., Wong, G. Y., Dyer, M., Aguiar, A. P., Selomane, O., and Jiménez Aceituno, A.: When the whole is less than the sum of all parts – Tracking global-level impacts of national sustainability initiatives, \*Global Environmental Change\*, 69, 102306, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gloenvcha.2021.102306>, 2021.](#)
- 2375 [Droissart, V., Dauby, G., Hardy, O. J., Deblauwe, V., Harris, D. J., Janssens, S., Mackinder, B. A., Blach-Overgaaard, A., Sonké, B., Sosef, M. S. M., Stévant, T., Svenning, J.-C., Wieringa, J. J., and Couvreur, T. L. P.: Beyond trees: Biogeographical regionalization of tropical Africa, \*Journal of Biogeography\*, 45, 1153–1167, <https://doi.org/10.1111/jbi.13190>, 2018.](#)
- [Duffy, R.: Waging a war to save biodiversity: the rise of militarized conservation, \*International Affairs \(Royal Institute of International Affairs 1944-\)\*, 90, 819–834, 2014.](#)
- 2380 [Duffy, R., John, F. a. V. S., Büscher, B., and Brockington, D.: The militarization of anti-poaching: undermining long term goals?, \*Environmental Conservation\*, 42, 345–348, <https://doi.org/10.1017/S0376892915000119>, 2015.](#)
- [Duffy, R., Massé, F., Smidt, E., Marijnen, E., Büscher, B., Verweijen, J., Ramutsindela, M., Simlai, T., Joanny, L., and Lunstrum, E.: Why we must question the militarisation of conservation, \*Biol Conserv\*, 232, 66–73, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2019.01.013>, 2019.](#)
- 2385 [Dunne, R. P., Polunin, N. V. C., Sand, P. H., and Johnson, M. L.: Chapter Three - The Creation of the Chagos Marine Protected Area: A Fisheries Perspective☆, in: \*Advances in Marine Biology\*, vol. 69, edited by: Johnson, M. L. and Sandell, J., Academic Press, 79–127, <https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-800214-8.00003-7>, 2014.](#)
- [ECOS, EEB, and DUB: What is the environmental impact of electric cars?, \*Environmental Action Germany, Berlin, Germany\*, 2023.](#)
- 2390 [Edgar, G. J., Stuart-Smith, R. D., Willis, T. J., Kininmonth, S., Baker, S. C., Banks, S., Barrett, N. S., Becerro, M. A., Bernard, A. T. F., Berkhout, J., Buxton, C. D., Campbell, S. J., Cooper, A. T., Davey, M., Edgar, S. C., Försterra, G., Galván, D. E., Irigoyen, A. J., Kushner, D. J., Moura, R., Parnell, P. E., Shears, N. T., Soler, G., Strain, E. M. A., and Thomson, R. J.: Global conservation outcomes depend on marine protected areas with five key features, \*Nature\*, 506, 216–220, <https://doi.org/10.1038/nature13022>, 2014.](#)
- 2395 [Engler, M. and Engler, P.: André Gorz’s Non-Reformist Reforms Show How We Can Transform the World Today, \*Jacobin\*, 2021.](#)
- [Escobar, A.: Reframing civilization\(s\): from critique to transitions, \*Globalizations\*, 0, 1–18, <https://doi.org/10.1080/14747731.2021.2002673>, 2021.](#)
- [European Commission: Nature-based solutions - \*European Commission\*, 2023.](#)
- 2400 [Fa, J. E., Watson, J. E., Leiper, I., Potapov, P., Evans, T. D., Burgess, N. D., Molnár, Z., Fernández-Llamazares, Á., Duncan, T., Wang, S., Austin, B. J., Jonas, H., Robinson, C. J., Malmer, P., Zander, K. K., Jackson, M. V., Ellis, E., Brondizio, E. S., and Garnett, S. T.: Importance of Indigenous Peoples’ lands for the conservation of Intact Forest Landscapes, \*Frontiers in Ecology and the Environment\*, fee.2148, <https://doi.org/10.1002/fee.2148>, 2020.](#)
- 2405 [Fairhead, J. and Leach, M.: \*Misreading the African Landscape: Society and Ecology in a Forest-Savanna Mosaic\*, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, <https://doi.org/10.1017/CBO9781139164023>, 1996.](#)
- [Fleischman, F., Coleman, E., Fischer, H., Kashwan, P., Pfeifer, M., Ramprasad, V., Rodriguez Solorzano, C., and Veldman, J. W.: Restoration prioritization must be informed by marginalized people, \*Nature\*, 607, E5–E6, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41586-022-04733-x>, 2022.](#)
- 2410 [Forget, M. and Bos, V.: Harvesting lithium and sun in the Andes: Exploring energy justice and the new materialities of energy transitions, \*Energy Research & Social Science\*, 87, 102477, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.erss.2021.102477>, 2022.](#)
- [Gaia Amazonas: The Global Agreement for Biodiveristy must ensure the ecological and sociocultural connectivity of the Amazon, 2022.](#)
- 2415 [Galaz, V., Crona, B., Dauriach, A., Jouffray, J.-B., Österblom, H., and Fichtner, J.: Tax havens and global environmental degradation, \*Nat Ecol Evol\*, 2, 1352–1357, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41559-018-0497-3>, 2018.](#)
- [Garnett, S. T., Burgess, N. D., Fa, J. E., Fernández-Llamazares, Á., Molnár, Z., Robinson, C. J., Watson, J. E. M., Zander, K. K., Austin, B., Brondizio, E. S., Collier, N. F., Duncan, T., Ellis, E., Geyle, H., Jackson, M. V., Jonas, H., Malmer, P., McGowan, B., Sivongxay, A., and Leiper, I.: A spatial overview of the global importance of Indigenous lands for conservation, \*Nature Sustainability\*, 1, 369–374, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41893-018-0100-6>,](#)

Deleted: 24

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

- 2420 [2018](#).  
 Geels, F. W.: Low-carbon transition via system reconfiguration? A socio-technical whole system analysis of passenger mobility in Great Britain (1990–2016), *Energy Research & Social Science*, 46, 86–102, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.erss.2018.07.008>, 2018.
- 2425 Geussens, K., Van den Broeck, G., Vanderhaegen, K., Verbist, B., and Maertens, M.: Farmers' perspectives on payments for ecosystem services in Uganda, *Land Use Policy*, 84, 316–327, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.landusepol.2019.03.020>, 2019.
- Ghosh, A.: *The Nutmeg's Curse: Parables for a Planet in Crisis*, University of Chicago Press, Chicago, IL, 336 pp., 2022.
- 2430 Girardin, C. A. J., Jenkins, S., Seddon, N., Allen, M., Lewis, S. L., Wheeler, C. E., Griscom, B. W., and Malhi, Y.: Nature-based solutions can help cool the planet — if we act now, *Nature*, 593, 191–194, <https://doi.org/10.1038/d41586-021-01241-2>, 2021.
- Gómez-Barris, M.: *The Extractive Zone: Social Ecologies and Decolonial Perspectives*, Duke University Press, Durham, NC, <https://doi.org/10.1215/9780822372561>, 2017.
- 2435 Gonzalez, C. G.: *The Sacrifice Zones of Carbon Capitalism: Race, Expendability, and Loss and Damage*, in: *Research Handbook on Climate Change Law and Loss and Damage*, Edward Elgar, Rochester, NY, 2021.
- Gössling, S.: Why cities need to take road space from cars - and how this could be done, *Journal of Urban Design*, 25, 443–448, <https://doi.org/10.1080/13574809.2020.1727318>, 2020.
- 2440 Grorud-Colvert, K., Sullivan-Stack, J., Roberts, C., Constant, V., Horta e Costa, B., Pike, E. P., Kingston, N., Laffoley, D., Sala, E., Claudet, J., Friedlander, A. M., Gill, D. A., Lester, S. E., Day, J. C., Gonçalves, E. J., Ahmadi, G. N., Rand, M., Villagomez, A., Ban, N. C., Gurney, G. G., Spalding, A. K., Bennett, N. J., Briggs, J., Morgan, L. E., Moffitt, R., Deguignet, M., Pikitch, E. K., Darling, E. S., Jessen, S., Hameed, S. O., Di Carlo, G., Guidetti, P., Harris, J. M., Torre, J., Kizilkaya, Z., Agardy, T., Cury, P., Shah, N. J., Sack, K., Cao, L., Fernandez, M., and Lubchenco, J.: The MPA Guide: A framework to achieve global goals for the ocean, *Science*, 373, eabf0861, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abf0861>, 2021.
- 2445 Gross, E. M., Lahkar, B. P., Subedi, N., Nyirenda, V. R., Klebelsberg, E., and Jakoby, O.: Elephants in the village: Causes and consequences of property damage in Asia and Africa, *Conservation Science and Practice*, 3, e343, <https://doi.org/10.1111/csp2.343>, 2021.
- Grove, J. V.: *The geopolitics of extinction: From the Anthropocene to the Eurocene*, in: *Technology and World Politics*, Routledge, 2017.
- 2450 Habersang, A.: Utopia, future imaginations and prefigurative politics in the indigenous women's movement in Argentina, *Social Movement Studies*, 0, 1–16, <https://doi.org/10.1080/14742837.2022.2047639>, 2022.
- Hamann, M., Berry, K., Chaigneau, T., Curry, T., Heilmayr, R., Henriksson, P. J. G., Hentati-Sundberg, J., Jina, A., Lindkvist, E., Lopez-Maldonado, Y., Nieminen, E., Piaggio, M., Qiu, J., Rocha, J. C., Schill, C., Shepon, A., Tilman, A. R., van den Bijgaart, I., and Wu, T.: Inequality and the Biosphere, *Annu. Rev. Environ. Resour.*, 43, 61–83, <https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-environ-102017-025949>, 2018.
- 2455 Haraway, D.: Anthropocene, Capitalocene, Plantationocene, Chthulucene: Making Kin, *Environmental Humanities*, 6, 159–165, 2015.
- Haraway, D.: *Staying with the Trouble: Making kin in the Chthulucene*, Duke University Press, Baltimore, USA, 2016.
- 2460 Harden-Davies, H., Humphries, F., Maloney, M., Wright, G., Gjerde, K., and Vierros, M.: Rights of Nature: Perspectives for Global Ocean Stewardship, *Marine Policy*, 122, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2020.104059>, 2020.
- Harper, G., Sommerville, R., Kendrick, E., Driscoll, L., Slater, P., Stolkin, R., Walton, A., Christensen, P., Heidrich, O., Lambert, S., Abbott, A., Ryder, K., Gaines, L., and Anderson, P.: Recycling lithium-ion batteries from electric vehicles, *Nature*, 575, 75–86, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41586-019-1682-5>, 2019.
- 2465 Hayes, T., Grillos, T., Bremer, L. L., Murtinho, F., and Shapiro, E.: Collective PES: More than the sum of individual incentives, *Environmental Science & Policy*, 102, 1–8, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envsci.2019.09.010>, 2019.
- Hebinck, A., Diercks, G., von Wirth, T., Beers, P. J., Barsties, L., Buchel, S., Greer, R., van Steenberg, F., and Loorbach, D.: An actionable understanding of societal transitions: the X-curve framework, *Sustain Sci*, 17, 1009–1021, <https://doi.org/10.1007/s11625-021-01084-w>, 2022.
- 2470 Hecht, S. B.: Indigenous Soil Management and the Creation of Amazonian Dark Earths: Implications of Kayapó Practice, in: *Amazonian Dark Earths: Origin Properties Management*, edited by: Lehmann, J., Kern, D. C., Glaser, B., and Wodos, W. I., Springer Netherlands, Dordrecht, 355–372, [https://doi.org/10.1007/1-4020-2597-1\\_18](https://doi.org/10.1007/1-4020-2597-1_18), 2003.
- Hickel, J. and Slamersak, A.: Existing climate mitigation scenarios perpetuate colonial inequalities, *The Lancet*

Deleted: 25

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

2475 [Planetary Health](https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196(22)00092-4), 6, e628–e631, [https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196\(22\)00092-4](https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196(22)00092-4), 2022.

Hickel, J., Sullivan, D., and Zoomkawala, H.: Plunder in the Post-Colonial Era: Quantifying Drain from the Global South Through Unequal Exchange, 1960–2018, *New Political Economy*, <https://doi.org/10.1080/13563467.2021.1899153>, 2021.

2480 Hickel, J., O'Neill, D. W., Fanning, A. L., and Zoomkawala, H.: National responsibility for ecological breakdown: a fair-shares assessment of resource use, 1970–2017, *The Lancet Planetary Health*, 6, e342–e349, [https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196\(22\)00044-4](https://doi.org/10.1016/S2542-5196(22)00044-4), 2022.

Hilborn, R.: Counterpoint to Sala and Giakoumi, *ICES Journal of Marine Science*, 75, 1169–1170, <https://doi.org/10.1093/icesjms/fsx141>, 2018.

2485 [ICCA Consortium: Territories of Life](https://www.iccaconsortium.org/), [ICCA consortium](https://www.iccaconsortium.org/), Worldwide, 2021.

IPBES: *The Global Assessment Report on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services of the Intergovernmental Science-Policy Platform on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services*, Bonn, Germany, 2019.

2490 IPCC: *Global Warming of 1.5°C. An IPCC Special Report on the impacts of global warming of 1.5C above pre-industria levels and related global green house gas emission pathways, in the context of strenthening the global resposne to the threat of climate change, sustainable development, and efforts to eradicate poverty.*, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge U.K., 2019.

IPCC: *Climate Change 2022: Impacts, Adaptation and Vulnerability. Contribution of Working Group II to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change*, <https://doi.org/10.1017/9781009325844>, 2022.

2495 IPCC: *Summary for Policymakers*, in: *Climate Change 2023: Synthesis Report. A Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. Contribution of Working Groups I, II, III to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change*, IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland, 2023.

2500 Jaeckel, A., Harden-Davies, H., Amon, D. J., van der Grient, J., Hanich, Q., van Leeuwen, J., Niner, H. J., and Seto, K.: Deep seabed mining lacks social legitimacy, *npj Ocean Sustain.* 2, 1–4, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s44183-023-00009-7>, 2023.

Jenkins, C. N. and Van Houtan, K. S.: Global and regional priorities for marine biodiversity protection, *Biological Conservation*, 204, 333–339, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2016.10.005>, 2016.

2505 Jones, M. W., Peters, G. P., Gasser, T., Andrew, R. M., Schwingshackl, C., Gütschow, J., Houghton, R. A., Friedlingstein, P., Pongratz, J., and Le Quéré, C.: National contributions to climate change due to historical emissions of carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide since 1850, *Sci Data*, 10, 155, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41597-023-02041-1>, 2023.

Juárez, N.: *The World Is Burning: Racialized Regimes of Eeo-Terror and the Anthropocene as Eurocene*, in: *The Anthropocene*, Routledge, 2021.

2510 Juhola, S., Filatova, T., Hochrainer-Stigler, S., Mechler, R., Scheffran, J., and Schweizer, P.-J.: Social tipping points and adaptation limits in the context of systemic risk: Concepts, models and governance, *Frontiers in Climate*, 4, 2022.

Katwala, A.: *The spiralling environmental cost of our lithium battery addiction*, *Wired UK*, 2018.

2515 Kingsbury, D. V.: Energy transitions in the shadow of a dictator: Decarbonizing neoliberalism and lithium extraction in Chile, *The Anthropocene Review*, 20530196221087790, <https://doi.org/10.1177/20530196221087790>, 2022.

Kiwango, W. A. and Mabele, M. B.: Why the Convivial Conservation Vision Needs Complementing to be a Viable Alternative for Conservation in the Global South, *Conservation and Society*, 20, 179, [https://doi.org/10.4103/cs.cs\\_45\\_21](https://doi.org/10.4103/cs.cs_45_21), 2022.

2520 Knauß, S.: *Conceptualizing Human Stewardship in the Anthropocene: The Rights of Nature in Ecuador*, *New Zealand and India. J Agric Environ Ethics*, 31, 703–722, <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10806-018-9731-x>, 2018.

Koot, S. and Büscher, B.: Giving Land (Back)? The Meaning of Land in the Indigenous Politics of the South Kalahari Bushmen Land Claim, South Africa, *Journal of Southern African Studies*, 45, 357–374, <https://doi.org/10.1080/03057070.2019.1605119>, 2019.

2525 Kotzé, L. J. and Calzadilla, P. V.: Somewhere between Rhetoric and Reality: Environmental Constitutionalism and the Rights of Nature in Ecuador, *Transnational Environmental Law*, 6, 401–433, <https://doi.org/10.1017/S2047102517000061>, 2017.

Lam, A. and Mercure, J.-F.: Evidence for a global electric vehicle tipping point, University of Exeter, Global Systems Institute, Exeter, UK, 2022.

Lapola, D. M., Pinho, P., Quesada, C. A., Strassburg, B. B. N., Rammig, A., Kruijt, B., Brown, F., Ometto, J. P. H.

Deleted: 26

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

2530 B., Premebida, A., Marengo, J. A., Vergara, W., and Nobre, C. A.: Limiting the high impacts of Amazon forest dieback with no-regrets science and policy action, *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, 115, 11671–11679, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1721770115>, 2018.

2535 Lapola, D. M., Pinho, P., Barlow, J., Aragão, L. E. O. C., Berenguer, E., Carmenta, R., Liddy, H. M., Seixas, H., Silva, C. V. J., Silva-Junior, C. H. L., Alencar, A. A. C., Anderson, L. O., Armenteras, D., Brovkin, V., Calders, K., Chambers, J., Chini, L., Costa, M. H., Faria, B. L., Fearnside, P. M., Ferreira, J., Gatti, L., Gutierrez-Velez, V. H., Han, Z., Hibbard, K., Koven, C., Lawrence, P., Pongratz, J., Portela, B. T. T., Rounsevell, M., Ruane, A. C., Schaldach, R., da Silva, S. S., von Randow, C., and Walker, W. S.: The drivers and impacts of Amazon forest degradation, *Science*, 379, eabp8622, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abp8622>, 2023.

2540 Le, J. T., Levin, L. A., and Carson, R. T.: Incorporating ecosystem services into environmental management of deep-seabed mining, *Deep Sea Research Part II: Topical Studies in Oceanography*, 137, 486–503, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dsr2.2016.08.007>, 2017.

Leach, M., Newell, P., and Scoones, I.: *The Politics of Green Transformations*, 1st ed., Routledge, London, <https://doi.org/10.4324/9781315747378>, 2015.

2545 Leach, M., Reyers, B., Bai, X., Brondizio, E. S., Cook, C., Diaz, S., Espindola, G., Scobie, M., Stafford-Smith, M., and Subramanian, S. M.: Equity and sustainability in the Anthropocene: a social–ecological systems perspective on their intertwined futures, *Global Sustainability*, 1, e13, <https://doi.org/10.1017/sus.2018.12>, 2018.

Leifsen, E., Gustafsson, M.-T., Guzmán-Gallegos, M. A., and Schilling-Vacaflor, A.: New mechanisms of participation in extractive governance: between technologies of governance and resistance work, *Third World Quarterly*, 38, 1043–1057, <https://doi.org/10.1080/01436597.2017.1302329>, 2017.

2550 Lenton, T. M.: Early warning of climate tipping points, *Nature Clim Change*, 1, 201–209, <https://doi.org/10.1038/nclimate1143>, 2011.

Lenton, T. M., Held, H., Kriegler, E., Hall, J. W., Lucht, W., Rahmstorf, S., and Schellnhuber, H. J.: Tipping elements in the Earth’s climate system, *PNAS*, 105, 1786–1793, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.0705414105>, 2008.

2555 Lenton, T. M., Rockström, J., Gaffney, O., Rahmstorf, S., Richardson, K., Steffen, W., and Schellnhuber, H. J.: Climate tipping points - too risky to bet against, *Nature*, 575, 592–595, <https://doi.org/10.1038/d41586-019-03595-0>, 2019.

Lenton, T. M., Benson, S., Smith, T., Ewer, T., Lanel, V., Petykowski, E., Powell, T. W. R., Abrams, J. F., Blomsma, F., and Sharpe, S.: Operationalising positive tipping points towards global sustainability, *Global Sustainability*, 5, e1, <https://doi.org/10.1017/sus.2021.30>, 2022a.

2560 Lenton, T. M., Benson, S., Smith, T., Ewer, T., Lanel, V., Petykowski, E., Powell, T. W. R., Abrams, J. F., Blomsma, F., and Sharpe, S.: Operationalising positive tipping points towards global sustainability, *Glob. Sustain.*, 5, e1, <https://doi.org/10.1017/sus.2021.30>, 2022b.

Lester, S. E., Halpern, B. S., Grorud-Colvert, K., Lubchenco, J., Ruttenberg, B. I., Gaines, S. D., Airamé, S., and Warner, R. R.: Biological effects within no-take marine reserves: a global synthesis, *Marine Ecology Progress Series*, 384, 33–46, <https://doi.org/10.3354/meps08029>, 2009.

2565 Levin, L. A., Amon, D. J., and Lily, H.: Challenges to the sustainability of deep-seabed mining, *Nat Sustain*, 3, 784–794, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41893-020-0558-x>, 2020.

Lunstrum, E.: Green Militarization: Anti-Poaching Efforts and the Spatial Contours of Kruger National Park, *Annals of the Association of American Geographers*, 104, 816–832, <https://doi.org/10.1080/00045608.2014.912545>, 2014.

2570 Lunstrum, E.: Conservation Meets Militarisation in Kruger National Park: Historical Encounters and Complex Legacies, *Conservation and Society*, 13, 356–369, 2015.

Lyon, T. P. and Maxwell, J. W.: Greenwash: Corporate Environmental Disclosure under Threat of Audit, *Journal of Economics & Management Strategy*, 20, 3–41, <https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1530-9134.2010.00282.x>, 2011.

2575 Mancini, L., Eslava, N. A., Traverso, M., and Mathieux, F.: Assessing impacts of responsible sourcing initiatives for cobalt: Insights from a case study, *Resources Policy*, 71, 102015, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resourpol.2021.102015>, 2021.

Maravalhas, J. and Vasconcelos, H. L.: Revisiting the pyrodiversity–biodiversity hypothesis: long-term fire regimes and the structure of ant communities in a Neotropical savanna hotspot, *Journal of Applied Ecology*, 51, 1661–1668, <https://doi.org/10.1111/1365-2664.12338>, 2014.

2580 Martin, M. P., Woodbury, D. J., Doroski, D. A., Nagele, E., Storace, M., Cook-Patton, S. C., Pasternack, R., and Ashton, M. S.: People plant trees for utility more often than for biodiversity or carbon, *Biological Conservation*, 261, 109224, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2021.109224>, 2021.

Massarella, K., Krauss, J. E., Kiwango, W., and Fletcher, R.: Exploring Convivial Conservation in Theory and Practice: Possibilities and Challenges for a Transformative Approach to Biodiversity Conservation, *Conservation*

Deleted: 27

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

2585 and Society, 20, 59, [https://doi.org/10.4103/cs.cs\\_53\\_22](https://doi.org/10.4103/cs.cs_53_22), 2022.

Mavhura, E. and Mushure, S.: Forest and wildlife resource-conservation efforts based on indigenous knowledge: The case of Nharira community in Chikomba district, Zimbabwe, *Forest Policy and Economics*, 105, 83–90, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.forpol.2019.05.019>, 2019.

2590 McCauley, D. J., Jablonicky, C., Allison, E. H., Golden, C. D., Joyce, F. H., Mayorga, J., and Kroodsma, D.: Wealthy countries dominate industrial fishing, *Sci Adv*, 4, eaau2161, <https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.aau2161>, 2018.

Mellin, C., Aaron MacNeil, M., Cheal, A. J., Emslie, M. J., and Julian Caley, M.: Marine protected areas increase resilience among coral reef communities, *Ecology Letters*, 19, 629–637, <https://doi.org/10.1111/ele.12598>, 2016.

2595 Milkoreit, M., Hodbod, J., Baggio, J., Benessaiah, K., Calderón-Contreras, R., Donges, J. F., Mathias, J. D., Rocha, J. C., Schoon, M., and Werners, S. E.: Defining tipping points for social-ecological systems scholarship - An interdisciplinary literature review, *Environmental Research Letters*, 13, <https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/aaaa75>, 2018.

Millán, M. and Rosemberg, J.: *Proyecto Ballena T/tierra*, 2021.

Moore, J. W.: The Capitalocene, Part I: on the nature and origins of our ecological crisis, *The Journal of Peasant Studies*, 44, 594–630, <https://doi.org/10.1080/03066150.2016.1235036>, 2017.

2600 Morgera, E. and Lily, H.: Public participation at the International Seabed Authority: An international human rights law analysis, *Review of European, Comparative & International Environmental Law*, 31, 374–388, <https://doi.org/10.1111/reel.12472>, 2022.

Mureva, A., Ward, D., Pillay, T., Chivenge, P., and Cramer, M.: Soil Organic Carbon Increases in Semi-Arid Regions while it Decreases in Humid Regions Due to Woody-Plant Encroachment of Grasslands in South Africa, *Sci Rep*, 8, 15506, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-018-33701-7>, 2018.

2605 Mushonga, T.: The Militarisation of Conservation and Occupational Violence in Sikumi Forest Reserve, Zimbabwe, *Conservation & Society*, 19, 3–12, 2021.

Mushonga, T. and Matose, F.: Dimensions and corollaries of violence in Zimbabwe’s protected forests, *Geoforum*, 117, 216–224, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.geoforum.2020.10.005>, 2020.

2610 Mutanga, C. N., Gandiwa, E., Muboko, N., and Chikuta, O.: Sustainability of Wildlife Tourism: Tourist Perceptions on Threats to Wildlife Tourism in Two State Protected Areas in Zimbabwe, *African Journal of Hospitality, Tourism and Leisure*, 10, 895–9011, 2021.

Nänni, U. W.: The effect of afforestation on streamflow at Cathedral Peak: Report No. 1, *South African Forestry Journal*, 74, 6–12, <https://doi.org/10.1080/00382167.1970.9629233>, 1970.

2615 Navrud, S. and Strand, J.: Valuing Global Public Goods: A European Delphi Stated Preference Survey of Population Willingness to Pay for Amazon Rainforest Preservation, <https://papers.ssrn.com/abstract=2336347>, 1 October 2013.

Neves, E., Furquim, L., Levis, C., Rocha, B., Watling, J., Almeida, F., Betancourt, C., Junqueira, A., Moraes, C., Morcote-Rios, G., Shock, M., and Tamanaha, E.: People’s of the Amazon before European Colonization, in: *Amazon Assessment Report 2021*, United Nations Sustainable Development Solutions Network, New York, NY, US, 2021.

2620 Nixon, R.: *Slow Violence and the Environmentalism of the Poor.*, Harvard University Press, Cambridge, MA, 368 pp., 2013.

Nobre, C. A., Sampaio, G., Borma, L. S., Castilla-Rubio, J. C., Silva, J. S., and Cardoso, M.: Land-use and climate change risks in the Amazon and the need of a novel sustainable development paradigm, *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, 113, 10759–10768, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1605516113>, 2016.

2625 Nyborg, K., Anderies, J. M., Dannenberg, A., Lindahl, T., Schill, C., Schlüter, M., Adger, W. N., Arrow, K. J., Barrett, S., Carpenter, S., Chapin, F. S., Crépin, A.-S., Daily, G., Ehrlich, P., Folke, C., Jager, W., Kautsky, N., Levin, S. A., Madsen, O. J., Polasky, S., Scheffer, M., Walker, B., Weber, E. U., Wilen, J., Xepapadeas, A., and de Zeeuw, A.: Social norms as solutions, *Science*, 354, 42–43, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.aaf8317>, 2016.

2630 Nyirenda, V. and Tembo, O.: Managing Human-Elephant conflicts: vulnerability and capacity assessment and response strategies for Zambia, Department of National Parks and Wildlife, Chilanga, Zambia, <https://doi.org/10.13140/RG.2.2.26710.50249>, 2016.

Obura, D. O., Katerere, Y., Mayet, M., Kaelo, D., Msweli, S., Mather, K., Harris, J., Louis, M., Kramer, R., Teferi, T., Samoilys, M., Lewis, L., Bennie, A., Kumah, F., Isaacs, M., and Nantongo, P.: Integrate biodiversity targets from local to global levels, *Science*, 373, 746–748, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abh2234>, 2021.

2635 Obura, D. O., DeClerck, F., Verburg, P. H., Gupta, J., Abrams, J. F., Bai, X., Bunn, S., Ebi, K. L., Gifford, L., Gordon, C., Jacobson, L., Lenton, T. M., Liverman, D., Mohamed, A., Prodani, K., Rocha, J. C., Rockström, J., Sakschewski, B., Stewart-Koster, B., van Vuuren, D., Winkelmann, R., and Zimm, C.: Achieving a nature- and people-positive future, *One Earth*, 6, 105–117, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oneear.2022.11.013>, 2023.

Deleted: 28  
 Deleted: 1  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Normal, Right

2640 O’Leary, B. C., Winther-Janson, M., Bainbridge, J. M., Aitken, J., Hawkins, J. P., and Roberts, C. M.: Effective Coverage Targets for Ocean Protection, *Conservation Letters*, 9, 398–404, <https://doi.org/10.1111/conl.12247>, 2016.

2645 O’Leary, B. C., Ban, N. C., Fernandez, M., Friedlander, A. M., García-Borboroglu, P., Golbuu, Y., Guidetti, P., Harris, J. M., Hawkins, J. P., Langlois, T., McCauley, D. J., Pikitch, E. K., Richmond, R. H., and Roberts, C. M.: Addressing Criticisms of Large-Scale Marine Protected Areas, *BioScience*, 68, 359–370, <https://doi.org/10.1093/biosci/biy021>, 2018.

Oracion, E. G., Miller, M. L., and Christie, P.: Marine protected areas for whom? Fisheries, tourism, and solidarity in a Philippine community, *Ocean & Coastal Management*, 48, 393–410, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ocecoaman.2005.04.013>, 2005.

2650 Österblom, H., Jouffray, J.-B., Folke, C., Crona, B., Troell, M., Merrie, A., and Rockström, J.: Transnational Corporations as ‘Keystone Actors’ in Marine Ecosystems, *PLOS ONE*, 10, e0127533, <https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0127533>, 2015.

Otto, I. M., Donges, J. F., Cremades, R., Bhowmik, A., Hewitt, R. J., Lucht, W., Rockström, J., Allerberger, F., McCaffrey, M., Doe, S. S. P., Lenferna, A., Morán, N., Van Vuuren, D. P., and Schellnhuber, H. J.: Social tipping dynamics for stabilizing Earth’s climate by 2050, *Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A.*, 117, 2354–2365, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1900577117>, 2020.

2655 Pausas, J. G. and Bond, W. J.: Humboldt and the reinvention of nature, *Journal of Ecology*, 107, 1031–1037, <https://doi.org/10.1111/1365-2745.13109>, 2019.

Pennaz, A. K., Ahmadou, M., Moritz, M., and Scholte, P.: Not Seeing the Cattle for the Elephants: The Implications of Discursive Linkages between Boko Haram and Wildlife Poaching in Waza National Park, Cameroon, *Conservation and Society*, 16, 125–135, 2018.

2660 Pereira, L., Asrar, G. R., Bhargava, R., Fisher, L. H., Hsu, A., Jabbour, J., Nel, J., Selomane, O., Sitas, N., Trisos, C., Ward, J., van den Ende, M., Vervoort, J., and Weinfurter, A.: Grounding global environmental assessments through bottom-up futures based on local practices and perspectives, *Sustainability Science* 2021, 1, 1–16, <https://doi.org/10.1007/S11625-021-01013-X>, 2021.

2665 Pickering, J., Coolsaet, B., Dawson, N., Suisseeva, K. M., Inoue, C. Y. A., and Lim, M.: Rethinking and Upholding Justice and Equity in Transformative Biodiversity Governance, in: *Transforming Biodiversity Governance*, edited by: Visseren-Hamakers, I. J. and Kok, M. T. J., Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 155–178, 2022.

Pinho, P.: Watching Brazil but Missing the Story: An Amazonian Inferno, *LASAForum*, XLVII, 21–25, 2016.

2670 Piotrowski, M.: Nearing the tipping point: Drivers of deforestation in the Amazon Region, *Inter-American Dialogue*, Washington D.C., USA, 2019.

Pörtner, Hans-Otto, Scholes, Robert J., Agard, John, Archer, Emma, Arneeth, Almut, Bai, Xuemei, Barnes, David, Burrows, Michael, Chan, Lena, Cheung, Wai Lung (William), Diamond, Sarah, Donatti, Camila, Duarte, Carlos, Eisenhauer, Nico, Foden, Wendy, Gasalla, Maria A., Handa, Collins, Hickler, Thomas, Hoegh-Guldberg, Ove, Ichii, Kazuhito, Jacob, Ute, Insarov, Gregory, Kiessling, Wolfgang, Leadley, Paul, Leemans, Rik, Levin, Lisa, Lim, Michelle, Maharaj, Shobha, Managi, Shunsuke, Marquet, Pablo A., McElwee, Pamela, Midgley, Guy, Oberdorff, Thierry, Obura, David, Osman Elasha, Balgis, Pandit, Ram, Pascual, Unai, Pires, Aliny P. F., Popp, Alexander, Reyes-García, Victoria, Sankaran, Mahesh, Settele, Josef, Shin, Yunne-Jai, Sintayehu, Dejene W., Smith, Peter, Steiner, Nadja, Strassburg, Bernardo, Sukumar, Raman, Trisos, Christopher, Val, Adalberto Luis, Wu, Jianguo, Aldrian, Edvin, Parmesan, Camille, Pichs-Madruga, Ramon, Roberts, Debra C., Rogers, Alex D., Diaz, Sandra, Fischer, Markus, Hashimoto, Shizuka, Lavorel, Sandra, Wu, Ning, and Ngo, Hien: Scientific outcome of the IPBES-IPCC co-sponsored workshop on biodiversity and climate change, *Zenodo*, <https://doi.org/10.5281/ZENODO.4659158>, 2021.

2680 Putzer, A., Lambooy, T., Jeurissen, R., and Kim, E.: Putting the rights of nature on the map. A quantitative analysis of rights of nature initiatives across the world, *Journal of Maps*, 18, 89–96, <https://doi.org/10.1080/17445647.2022.2079432>, 2022.

2685 Raftopoulos, M. and Morley, J.: Ecocide in the Amazon: the contested politics of environmental rights in Brazil, *The International Journal of Human Rights*, 24, 1616–1641, <https://doi.org/10.1080/13642987.2020.1746648>, 2020.

Rammelt, C. F., Gupta, J., Liverman, D., Scholtens, J., Ciobanu, D., Abrams, J. F., Bai, X., Gifford, L., Gordon, C., Hurlbert, M., Inoue, C. Y. A., Jacobson, L., Lade, S. J., Lenton, T. M., McKay, D. I. A., Nakicenovic, N., Okereke, C., Otto, I. M., Pereira, L. M., Prodani, K., Rockström, J., Stewart-Koster, B., Verburg, P. H., and Zimm, C.: Impacts of meeting minimum access on critical earth systems amidst the Great Inequality, *Nature Sustainability*, 6, 212–221, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41893-022-00995-5>, 2023.

2690 Ramutsindela, M., Matose, F., and Mushonga, T.: *The Violence of Conservation in Africa: State, Militarization and Alternatives*, Edward Elgar Publishing, 271 pp., 2022.

Deleted: 29  
 Deleted: 1  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Page Number  
 Formatted: Normal, Right

- 2695 [Rionfrancos, T., Kendall, K. K., Haugen, M., McDonald, K., Hassan, B., and Slattery, M.: Achieving Zero Emissions with More Mobility Less Mining, University of California, Davis, Davis, California, USA, 2023.](#)
- 2700 [Rocha, J., Lanyon, C., and Peterson, G.: Upscaling the resilience assessment through comparative analysis, \*Global Environmental Change\*, 72, 102419, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gloenvcha.2021.102419>, 2022.](#)
- 2705 [Rockström, J., Gupta, J., Qin, D., Lade, S. J., Abrams, J. F., Andersen, L. S., Armstrong McKay, D. I., Bai, X., Bala, G., Bunn, S. E., Ciobanu, D., DeClerck, F., Ebi, K., Gifford, L., Gordon, C., Hasan, S., Kanic, N., Lenton, T. M., Lorian, S., Liverman, D. M., Mohamed, A., Nakicenovic, N., Obura, D., Ospina, D., Prodani, K., Rammelt, C., Sakschewski, B., Scholtens, J., Stewart-Koster, B., Tharammal, T., van Vuuren, D., Verburg, P. H., Winkelmann, R., Zimm, C., Bennett, E. M., Bringezu, S., Broadgate, W., Green, P. A., Huang, L., Jacobson, L., Ndehedehe, C., Pedde, S., Rocha, J., Scheffer, M., Schulte-Uebbing, L., de Vries, W., Xiao, C., Xu, C., Xu, X., Zafra-Calvo, N., and Zhang, X.: Safe and just Earth system boundaries, \*Nature\*, 1–10, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41586-023-06083-8>, 2023.](#)
- 2710 [Roupé, J. and Ragnarsdóttir, K. V.: Ecocide Law for the Paris Agreement, The Schumacher Institute, 2022.](#)
- 2715 [Russell-Smith, J., Yates, C., Vernooij, R., Eames, T., van der Werf, G., Ribeiro, N., Edwards, A., Beatty, R., Lekoko, O., Mafoko, J., Monagle, C., and Johnston, S.: Opportunities and challenges for savanna burning emissions abatement in southern Africa, \*Journal of Environmental Management\*, 288, 112414, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jenvman.2021.112414>, 2021.](#)
- 2720 [Sala, E. and Giakoumi, S.: No-take marine reserves are the most effective protected areas in the ocean, \*ICES Journal of Marine Science\*, 75, 1166–1168, <https://doi.org/10.1093/icesjms/fsx059>, 2018.](#)
- 2725 [Saleth, L. A. and Varov, I.: Anticipating lithium extraction in northern Portugal: A Sacrifice Zone in the making?, \*Journal of Political Ecology\*, 30, <https://doi.org/10.2458/jpe.4849>, 2023.](#)
- 2730 [Sandbrook, C., Albury-Smith, S., Allan, J. R., Bhola, N., Bingham, H. C., Brockington, D., Byaruhanga, A. B., Fajardo, J., Fitzsimons, J., Franks, P., Fleischman, F., Frechette, A., Kakuyo, K., Kaptoyo, E., Kuemmerle, T., Kalunda, P. N., Nuvunga, M., O'Donnell, B., Onyai, F., Pfeifer, M., Pritchard, R., Ramos, A., Rao, M., Ryan, C. M., Shyamsundar, P., Tauli, J., Tumusiime, D. M., Vilaca, M., Watmough, G. R., Worsdell, T., and Zaehring, J. G.: Social considerations are crucial to success in implementing the 30×30 global conservation target, \*Nat Ecol Evol\*, 7, 784–785, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41559-023-02048-2>, 2023.](#)
- 2735 [Scheffer, Marten.: Critical transitions in nature and society, Princeton University Press, 384 pp., 2009.](#)
- 2740 [Schiller, L., Bailey, M., Jacquet, J., and Sala, E.: High seas fisheries play a negligible role in addressing global food security, \*Science Advances\*, 4, eaat8351, <https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.aat8351>, 2018.](#)
- 2745 [Scholes, R. J.: Convex Relationships in Ecosystems Containing Mixtures of Trees and Grass, \*Environ Resource Econ\*, 26, 559–574, <https://doi.org/10.1023/B:EARE.0000007349.67564.b3>, 2003.](#)
- [Scott, D. and Smith, A.: “Sacrifice Zones” in the Green Energy Economy: Toward an Environmental Justice Framework, \*mlj\*, 62, 861–898, <https://doi.org/10.7202/1042776ar>, 2017.](#)
- [Seddon, N.: Harnessing the potential of nature-based solutions for mitigating and adapting to climate change, \*Science\*, 376, 1410–1416, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.abn9668>, 2022.](#)
- [Seddon, N., Chausson, A., Berry, P., Girardin, C. A. J., Smith, A., and Turner, B.: Understanding the value and limits of nature-based solutions to climate change and other global challenges, \*Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences\*, 375, 20190120, <https://doi.org/10.1098/rstb.2019.0120>, 2020.](#)
- [Selig, E. R., Turner, W. R., Troëng, S., Wallace, B. P., Halpern, B. S., Kaschner, K., Lascelles, B. G., Carpenter, K. E., and Mittermeier, R. A.: Global Priorities for Marine Biodiversity Conservation, \*PLOS ONE\*, 9, e82898, <https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0082898>, 2014.](#)
- [Shear, B.: Making the green economy: politics, desire, and economic possibility, \*Journal of Political Ecology\*, 21, <https://doi.org/10.2458/v21i1.21132>, 2014.](#)
- [Skinner, C.: The Plastocene- Plastic in the sedimentary record, European Geoscience Union EGU Blogs, 2019.](#)
- [Smallhorn-West, P. F., Weeks, R., Gurney, G., and Pressey, R. L.: Ecological and socioeconomic impacts of marine protected areas in the South Pacific: assessing the evidence base, \*Biodivers Conserv\*, 29, 349–380, <https://doi.org/10.1007/s10531-019-01918-1>, 2020.](#)
- [Smit, I. P. J., Asner, G. P., Govender, N., Kennedy-Bowdoin, T., Knapp, D. E., and Jacobson, J.: Effects of fire on woody vegetation structure in African savanna, \*Ecological Applications\*, 20, 1865–1875, <https://doi.org/10.1890/09-0929.1>, 2010.](#)
- 2745 [Song, L.: Out of Balance, ProPublica, 15th June, 2023.](#)
- [Sowińska-Świerkosz, B. and Garcia, J.: What are Nature-based solutions \(NBS\)? Setting core ideas for concept clarification, \*Nature-Based Solutions\*, 2, 100009, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nbsj.2022.100009>, 2022.](#)
- [Sowman, M. and Sunde, J.: Social impacts of marine protected areas in South Africa on coastal fishing communities, \*Ocean & Coastal Management\*, 157, 168–179, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ocecoaman.2018.02.013>,](#)

Deleted: 30

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

2750 2018.  
 Strassburg, B. B. N., Iribarrem, A., Beyer, H. L., Cordeiro, C. L., Crouzeilles, R., Jakovac, C., Junqueira, A. B.,  
 Lacerda, E., Latawiec, A. E., Balmford, A., Brooks, T. M., Butchart, S. H. M., Chazdon, R. L., Erb, K.-H.,  
 Brancalion, P., Buchanan, G., Cooper, D., Díaz, S., Donald, P. F., Kapos, V., Leclère, D., Miles, L., Obersteiner, M.,  
 Plutzer, C., Scaramuzza, C. A. de M., Scarano, F. R., and Visconti, P.: Reply to: Restoration prioritization must be  
 2755 informed by marginalized people, *Nature*, 607, E7–E9, <https://doi.org/10.1038/s41586-022-04734-w>, 2022.  
 Sumaila, U. R., Lam, V. W. Y., Miller, D. D., Teh, L., Watson, R. A., Zeller, D., Cheung, W. W. L., Côté, I. M.,  
 Rogers, A. D., Roberts, C., Sala, E., and Pauly, D.: Winners and losers in a world where the high seas is closed to  
 fishing, *Sci Rep*, 5, 8481, <https://doi.org/10.1038/srep08481>, 2015.  
 Systemiq: The Breakthrough Effect: How tipping points can accelerate net zero, Systemiq, The University of Exeter,  
 2760 Bezos Earth Fund, 2023.  
 Sze, J.: *Sustainability: Approaches to Environmental Justice and Social Power*, NYU Press, 2018.  
 Tàbara, D. J., Frantzeskaki, N., Hölscher, K., Pedde, S., Kok, K., Lamperti, F., Christensen, J. H., Jäger, J., and  
 Berry, P.: Positive tipping points in a rapidly warming world, *Current Opinion in Environmental Sustainability*, 31,  
 120–129, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cosust.2018.01.012>, 2018.  
 2765 Tàbara, J. D.: Regenerative sustainability. A relational model of possibilities for the emergence of positive tipping  
 points, *Environmental Sociology*, 0, 1–20, <https://doi.org/10.1080/23251042.2023.2239538>, 2023.  
 Tanasescu, M.: The rights of nature in Ecuador: the making of an idea, *International Journal of Environmental  
 Studies*, 70, 846–861, <https://doi.org/10.1080/00207233.2013.845715>, 2013.  
 2770 Tear, T. H., Wolff, N. H., Lipsett-Moore, G. J., Ritchie, M. E., Ribeiro, N. S., Petracca, L. S., Lindsey, P. A.,  
 Hunter, L., Loveridge, A. J., and Steinbruch, F.: Savanna fire management can generate enough carbon revenue to  
 help restore Africa’s rangelands and fill protected area funding gaps, *One Earth*, 4, 1776–1791,  
<https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oneear.2021.11.013>, 2021.  
 Teh, L., Lam, V., Cheung, W., Miller, D., Teh, L., and Sumaila, U. R.: Impact of high seas closure on food security  
 2775 in low-income fish-dependent countries, in: *Handbook on the Economics and Management of Sustainable Oceans*,  
 Edward Elgar Publishing, 232–262, 2017.  
 Terry, N., Castro, A., Chibwe, B., Karuri-Sebina, G., Savu, C., and Pereira, L.: Inviting a decolonial praxis for future  
 imaginaries of nature: Introducing the Entangled Time Tree, *Environmental Science & Policy*, 151, 103615,  
<https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envsci.2023.103615>, 2024.  
 2780 Tilot, V., Willaert, K., Guilloux, B., Chen, W., Mulalap, C. Y., Gaulme, F., Bambridge, T., Peters, K., and Dahl, A.:  
 Traditional Dimensions of Seabed Resource Management in the Context of Deep Sea Mining in the Pacific:  
 Learning From the Socio-Ecological Interconnectivity Between Island Communities and the Ocean Realm, *Frontiers  
 in Marine Science*, 8, 2021.  
 Torello-Raventos, M., Feldpausch, T. R., Veenendaal, E., Schrod, F., Saiz, G., Domingues, T. F., Djagbletey, G.,  
 2785 Ford, A., Kemp, J., Marimon, B. S., Hur Marimon Junior, B., Lenza, E., Ratter, J. A., Maracahipes, L., Sasaki, D.,  
 Sonké, B., Zapfack, L., Taedoung, H., Villarroel, D., Schwarz, M., Quesada, C. A., Yoko Ishida, F., Nardoto, G. B.,  
 Affum-Baffoe, K., Arroyo, L., M.J.S. Bowman, D., Compaore, H., Davies, K., Diallo, A., Fyllas, N. M., Gilpin, M.,  
 Hien, F., Johnson, M., Killeen, T. J., Metcalfe, D., Miranda, H. S., Steininger, M., Thomson, J., Sykora, K., Mouglin,  
 E., Hiernaux, P., Bird, M. I., Grace, J., Lewis, S. L., Phillips, O. L., and Lloyd, J.: On the delineation of tropical  
 2790 vegetation types with an emphasis on forest/savanna transitions, *Plant Ecology & Diversity*, 6, 101–137,  
<https://doi.org/10.1080/17550874.2012.762812>, 2013.  
 Tschakert, P., Ellis, N. R., Anderson, C., Kelly, A., and Obeng, J.: One thousand ways to experience loss: A  
 systematic analysis of climate-related intangible harm from around the world, *Global Environmental Change*, 55,  
 58–72, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.gloenvcha.2018.11.006>, 2019.  
 2795 United Nations: *United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea*, 1982.  
 U.S. Department of Energy: *Energy Storage Grand Challenge: Energy Storage Market Report*, U.S. Department of  
 Energy, Washington D.C., USA, 2020.  
 Valenzuela-Fuentes, K., Alarcón-Barrueto, E., and Torres-Salinas, R.: From Resistance to Creation: Socio-  
 Environmental Activism in Chile’s “Sacrifice Zones,” *Sustainability*, 13, 3481, <https://doi.org/10.3390/su13063481>,  
 2021.  
 2800 Vedeld, P., Cavanagh, C., Petursson, J. G., Nakakaawa, C., Moll, R., and Sjaastad, E.: The Political Economy of  
 Conservation at Mount Elgon, Uganda: Between Local Deprivation, Regional Sustainability, and Global Public  
 Goods, *Conservation and Society*, 14, 183, <https://doi.org/10.4103/0972-4923.191155>, 2016.  
 Veldman, J. W., Aleman, J. C., Alvarado, S. T., Anderson, T. M., Archibald, S., Bond, W. J., Boutton, T. W.,  
 Buchmann, N., Buisson, E., Canadell, J. G., Dechoum, M. de S., Diaz-Toribio, M. H., Durigan, G., Ewel, J. J.,

Deleted: 31

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

2805 [Fernandes, G. W., Fidelis, A., Fleischman, F., Good, S. P., Griffith, D. M., Hermann, J.-M., Hoffmann, W. A., Le Stradic, S., Lehmann, C. E. R., Mahy, G., Nerlekar, A. N., Nippert, J. B., Noss, R. F., Osborne, C. P., Overbeck, G. E., Parr, C. L., Pausas, J. G., Pennington, R. T., Perring, M. P., Putz, F. E., Ratnam, J., Sankaran, M., Schmidt, I. B., Schmitt, C. B., Silveira, F. A. O., Staver, A. C., Stevens, N., Still, C. J., Strömberg, C. A. E., Temperton, V. M., Varner, J. M., and Zaloumis, N. P.: Comment on “The global tree restoration potential,” \*Science\*, 366, eaay7976, <https://doi.org/10.1126/science.aay7976>, 2019.](#)

2810 [Villasante, S., Ainsworth, G. B., Pita, P., Belgrano, A., Bennett, N., and Sumaila, U. R.: Chapter 2 - The role of marine protected areas \(MPAs\) in providing ecosystem services to improve ocean and human health, in: \*Oceans and Human Health \(Second Edition\)\*, edited by: Fleming, L. E., Alcantara Creencia, L. B., Gerwick, W. H., Goh, H. C., Gribble, M. O., Maycock, B., and Solo-Gabriele, H., Academic Press, San Diego, 23–37, <https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-323-95227-9.00013-0>, 2023.](#)

2815 [Walker, R., Moore, N. J., Arima, E., Perz, S., Simmons, C., Caldas, M., Vergara, D., and Bohrer, C.: Protecting the Amazon with protected areas, \*Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences\*, 106, 10582–10586, <https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.0806059106>, 2009.](#)

2820 [White, C. and Costello, C.: Close the High Seas to Fishing?, \*PLOS Biology\*, 12, e1001826, <https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pbio.1001826>, 2014.](#)

[Wilde, D., Lily, H., Craik, N., and Chakraborty, A.: Equitable sharing of deep-sea mining benefits: More questions than answers, \*Marine Policy\*, 151, 105572, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2023.105572>, 2023.](#)

2825 [Willaert, K.: Safeguarding the Interests of Developing States Within the Context of Deep-Sea Mining in the Area, in: \*Perspectives on Deep-Sea Mining\*, edited by: Sharma, R., Springer International Publishing, Cham, 661–680, \[https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-87982-2\\\_23\]\(https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-87982-2\_23\), 2022.](#)

[Wilson, E. O.: Half-earth: our planet’s fight for life, Liverwright Publishing Corporation, New York, NY, US, 259 pp., 2016.](#)

[Woodley, S., Locke, H., Laffoley, D., MacKinnon, K., Sandwith, T., and Smart, J.: A review of evidence for area-based conservation targets for the post-2020 global biodiversity framework, in: \*PARKS\*, journalAbbreviation: PARKS, 31–46, <https://doi.org/10.2305/IUCN.CH.2019.PARKS-25-2SW2.en>, 2019.](#)

2830 [Yusoff, K.: A Billion Black Anthropocenes or None, U of Minnesota Press, 157 pp., 2018.](#)

[Yusoff, K. and Gabrys, J.: Climate change and the imagination, \*WIREs Climate Change\*, 2, 516–534, <https://doi.org/10.1002/wcc.117>, 2011.](#)

2835 [Zhao, F., Xu, Z., and Zhang, L.: Changes in streamflow regime following vegetation changes from paired catchments, \*Hydrological Processes\*, 26, 1561–1573, <https://doi.org/10.1002/hyp.8266>, 2012.](#)

[Zhao, Q., Stephenson, F., Lundquist, C., Kaschner, K., Jayathilake, D., and Costello, M. J.: Where Marine Protected Areas would best represent 30% of ocean biodiversity, \*Biological Conservation\*, 244, 108536, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biocon.2020.108536>, 2020.](#)

2840 [Zografos, C. and Robbins, P.: Green Sacrifice Zones, or Why a Green New Deal Cannot Ignore the Cost Shifts of Just Transitions, \*One Earth\*, 3, 543–546, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oneear.2020.10.012>, 2020.](#)

[Zomer, R. J., Trabucco, A., Bossio, D. A., and Verchot, L. V.: Climate change mitigation: A spatial analysis of global land suitability for clean development mechanism afforestation and reforestation, \*Agriculture, Ecosystems & Environment\*, 126, 67–80, <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.agee.2008.01.014>, 2008.](#)

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Deleted: 32

Deleted: 1

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Page Number

Formatted: Normal, Right

Page 1: [1] Style Definition Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Heading 4: Font: (Default) Cambria, 12 pt, Font colour: Grey-60%, Left, Space Before: 14 pt, After: 4 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 li, Keep lines together

Page 1: [2] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Left: 2,54 cm, Right: 2,54 cm, Top: 2,54 cm, Bottom: 2,54 cm, Width: 21,59 cm, Height: 27,94 cm, Header distance from edge: 1,27 cm, Footer distance from edge: 1,27 cm, From text: 0 cm

Page 2: [3] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 2: [4] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 2: [5] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 2: [6] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 2: [7] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0,63 cm + Indent at: 1,27 cm

Page 1: [8] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [9] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [10] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 3: [11] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [12] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [12] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [13] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 3: [14] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [15] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [15] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [16] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [17] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [18] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [19] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [20] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [21] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [22] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [23] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [23] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [24] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [25] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [26] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [27] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [28] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [29] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [29] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [30] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [31] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 3: [32] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [33] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [34] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [35] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [35] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [35] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [36] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [37] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [38] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [39] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [40] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 3: [41] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

---

Page 3: [42] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 1: [43] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [44] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [45] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Normal, Right**

Page 4: [46] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 4: [47] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 4: [48] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 4: [49] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [50] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [51] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [52] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [53] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [54] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [55] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [56] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [57] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [58] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [59] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [60] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [61] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [62] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [63] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [64] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [65] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [66] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 4: [67] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [68] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [68] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [69] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [69] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [70] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [70] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [71] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼

Page 5: [72] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼

Page 5: [73] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt**

Page 5: [73] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt**

Page 5: [74] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [74] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 5: [75] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼

Page 1: [76] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [77] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [78] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Normal, Right**

Page 7: [79] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [80] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold, Highlight**

Page 7: [81] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [81] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [82] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [83] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [84] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [84] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [85] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [86] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [87] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [88] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [89] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼

Page 7: [90] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [91] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [92] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [93] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [93] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [94] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [95] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [95] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [96] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [97] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [98] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [99] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [100] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [101] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [102] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [103] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [104] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [105] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [106] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Justified**

Page 7: [107] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [108] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [109] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [110] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [110] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [111] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼

Page 7: [112] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [113] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [114] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [115] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [116] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [117] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [118] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [119] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [120] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [121] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [122] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [123] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [124] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [125] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [126] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [126] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [127] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [128] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [129] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 7: [130] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 7: [131] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 1: [132] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [133] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Page Number**

Page 1: [134] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Normal, Right**

Page 8: [135] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [136] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [137] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [137] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [138] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [139] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [140] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [141] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [142] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [143] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [144] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [145] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [146] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [147] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 8: [148] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [149] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [149] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [149] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [150] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [151] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [152] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [153] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [154] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 8: [155] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [156] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [156] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [157] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [158] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [159] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [160] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [161] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [162] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [163] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼  
Page 8: [164] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [165] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [166] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [167] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [168] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [169] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼  
Page 8: [170] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [171] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼  
Page 8: [172] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [173] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼  
Page 8: [174] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [175] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

▼  
Page 8: [176] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [177] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [178] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [178] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [179] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [180] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [181] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [182] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [183] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 8: [184] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 9: [185] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 1: [186] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [187] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [188] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 10: [189] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [190] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [191] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [192] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [193] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [194] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [195] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [196] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [196] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [197] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [198] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [199] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [200] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [201] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [202] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [203] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [204] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [205] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [206] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [207] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [208] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [208] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [208] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [209] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [210] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [211] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [212] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [212] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [213] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 10: [214] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [215] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [216] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [217] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [218] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [219] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [220] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [221] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [222] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [223] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 10: [224] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [225] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 10: [226] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [227] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [228] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [229] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 13: [230] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [231] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [232] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 13: [233] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [234] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [235] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [236] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [237] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [238] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [239] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [239] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [240] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [241] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [242] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [243] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [244] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [245] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 13: [246] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [247] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [248] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [249] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [250] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [251] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [251] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [252] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [253] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [253] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [254] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [254] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [255] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [256] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [257] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 13: [258] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [259] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [260] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [261] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 15: [262] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [263] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [264] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 15: [265] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [266] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [267] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [268] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [269] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [270] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [270] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [271] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [272] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [273] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 15: [274] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [275] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [276] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [277] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [278] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [279] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [280] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [281] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 15: [282] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 15: [283] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [284] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [285] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [286] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [286] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [287] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [288] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [289] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [290] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [291] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 15: [292] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [293] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [294] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [295] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 16: [296] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [297] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [298] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [299] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [300] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [301] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 16: [302] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [303] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [304] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 16: [305] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [306] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [307] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [307] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [308] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [309] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [310] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [310] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [311] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [312] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [313] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [314] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [315] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [316] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 16: [317] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [318] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [318] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [318] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [319] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [320] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [320] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 16: [321] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [322] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [323] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [324] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 17: [325] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [326] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [326] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [327] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [328] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [328] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [329] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [329] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [330] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [331] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Space After: 8 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1,08 li**

**Page 17: [332] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [333] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [333] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [333] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [334] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [335] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [336] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [337] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [338] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [339] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [340] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [341] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [342] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [342] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [343] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 17: [344] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 17: [345] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [346] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [346] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [347] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [348] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [349] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [350] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [351] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [352] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [353] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [354] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [355] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [356] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 17: [357] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [358] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [359] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [360] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 18: [361] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 18: [362] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [363] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [364] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [365] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Page 18: [366] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [367] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [368] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [369] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [370] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [371] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [372] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [373] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**No bullets or numbering**

**Page 18: [374] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [375] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [376] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [377] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [378] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [379] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

**Page 18: [379] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00**

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 18: [380] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 18: [380] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 18: [381] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 18: [382] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 1: [383] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [384] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page Number

Page 1: [385] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Normal, Right

Page 19: [386] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [387] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [388] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [389] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [390] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [391] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [392] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 19: [393] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [394] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [395] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [396] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold

Page 19: [397] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [398] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 19: [399] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [400] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

Page 19: [401] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [402] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [403] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [404] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [404] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [405] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [405] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [406] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [407] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 19: [408] Formatted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00

**Font: Times New Roman, 10 pt, Not Bold**

Page 20: [409] Deleted Admin 27/01/2024 13:55:00